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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2           MR. PEPPERMAN:  GOOD AFTERNOON, YOUR HONOR.

         3           THE COURT:  GOOD AFTERNOON.

         4           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, MICROSOFT CALLS AS

         5  ITS NEXT WITNESS MR. JOHN ROSE FROM COMPAQ COMPUTER

         6  CORPORATION.

         7           THE COURT:  VERY WELL.

         8            JOHN T. ROSE, DEFENDANT WITNESS, SWORN

         9                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

        10  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        11  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. ROSE.  WE MET BEFORE AT YOUR

        12  DEPOSITION AND AGAIN THIS MORNING.  MY NAME IS RICK

        13  PEPPERMAN, AND I REPRESENT MICROSOFT.

        14           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, AT THE OUTSET, BEFORE

        15  WE GET ON TO MR. ROSE'S TESTIMONY, COMPAQ IS REPRESENTED

        16  HERE TODAY BY COUNSEL, AND I WOULD LIKE TO BRIEFLY

        17  INTRODUCE THEM TO YOU.

        18           THE COURT:  CERTAINLY.

        19           MR. PEPPERMAN:  FIRST WE HAVE MR. TOM SEIKMAN,

        20  WHO IS THE GENERAL COUNSEL OF COMPAQ.

        21           THE COURT:  MR. SEIKMAN.

        22           MR. PEPPERMAN:  AND WE ALSO HAVE BILL COSTON AND

        23  MARTIN SAAD FROM THE VENABLE, BAETJER, HOWARD & CIVILETTI

        24  FIRM HERE IN WASHINGTON.  I THINK YOU WILL RECALL

        25  MR. COSTON, WHO WAS HERE FOR PART OF PROFESSOR FISHER'S
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         1  EXAMINATION.

         2           THE COURT:  PLEASED TO HAVE YOU, GENTLEMEN.

         3  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         4  Q.   MR. ROSE, DO YOU HAVE A COPY OF YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT

         5  TESTIMONY BEFORE YOU, SIR?

         6  A.   YES, I DO.

         7  Q.   DO YOU AFFIRM IT, SIR, TO BE YOUR ACCURATE AND

         8  TRUTHFUL TESTIMONY?

         9  A.   YES, I DO.

        10           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE AT THIS

        11  TIME TO OFFER INTO EVIDENCE THE VARIOUS EXHIBITS THAT ARE

        12  REFERRED TO IN MR. ROSE'S DIRECT TESTIMONY AND THAT ARE

        13  NOT ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  THESE ARE THE SIX, I BELIEVE,

        14  EXHIBITS THAT WERE INCLUDED IN THE VOLUME OF EXHIBITS

        15  ACCOMPANYING MR. ROSE'S WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY.

        16           THEY ARE DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2261, WHICH IS AN

        17  AUGUST 1995 PROMOTION AND DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN

        18  AOL AND COMPAQ.

        19           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2263, WHICH IS A MAY 31ST,

        20  1996, LETTER FROM PETER MILLER OF MICROSOFT TO DAVID

        21  CABELLO OF COMPAQ.

        22           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2264, WHICH IS AN AUGUST

        23  15TH, 1995, AMENDMENT TO THE COMPAQ-MICROSOFT LICENSE

        24  AGREEMENT, AND IT HAS ATTACHED TO IT AN AUGUST 15TH, 1995,

        25  LETTER FROM DON HARDWICK OF MICROSOFT TO STEVE FLANNIGAN
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         1  OF COMPAQ.

         2           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2265, WHICH IS A JUNE 6TH,

         3  1996, LETTER FROM DON HARDWICK OF MICROSOFT TO CELESTE

         4  DUNN OF COMPAQ.

         5           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2266, WHICH IS A JUNE 21ST,

         6  1996, LETTER OF CELESTE DUNN OF COMPAQ TO DON HARDWICK OF

         7  MICROSOFT.

         8           AND FINALLY, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2267, WHICH IS A

         9  MAY 10TH, 1996, EXTENSION OF THE COMPAQ-MICROSOFT

        10  FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP TO THE INTERNET/INTRANET.

        11           AND I OFFER THESE EXHIBITS AT THIS TIME.

        12           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        13           THE COURT:  VERY WELL.  DEFENDANT'S 2261, 2263,

        14  2264, 2265, 2266 AND 2267 ARE ADMITTED.

        15           WHAT HAPPENED TO 2262?  I'M JUST CURIOUS.

        16           MR. PEPPERMAN:  IT WAS NOT INCLUDED WITH

        17  MR. ROSE'S TESTIMONY AND HAS NOT BEEN OFFERED, YOUR HONOR.

        18           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        19                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 2261,

        20                          2263, 2264, 2265, 2266, AND 2267

        21                          WERE ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        22           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I WOULD ALSO AT THIS TIME LIKE TO

        23  OFFER INTO EVIDENCE ONE MORE EXHIBIT.  THIS EXHIBIT IS NOT

        24  AMONG THE EXHIBITS IN THE VOLUME ACCOMPANYING MR. ROSE'S

        25  DIRECT TESTIMONY.  WE'VE PRE-MARKED THIS EXHIBIT AS
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         1  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2377, AND IT CONSISTS OF TWO LETTERS:

         2  A JUNE 25, 1996, LETTER FROM DON HARDWICK OF MICROSOFT TO

         3  CELESTE DUNN OF COMPAQ; AND A JULY 7TH--JULY 8, EXCUSE ME,

         4  1996, LETTER FROM DON HARDWICK OF MICROSOFT TO CELESTE

         5  DUNN AT COMPAQ.  IT'S TWO LETTERS THAT WERE PRODUCED

         6  STAPLED TOGETHER, AND WE ARE OFFERING THEM AS ONE EXHIBIT.

         7           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         8           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2377 IS ADMITTED.

         9                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2377 WAS

        10                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        11           MR. PEPPERMAN:  AT THIS TIME, YOUR HONOR, WE

        12  TENDER THE WITNESS FOR CROSS-EXAMINATION.

        13                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

        14  BY MR. BOIES:

        15  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. ROSE.  MY NAME IS DAVID BOIES,

        16  AND I REPRESENT THE UNITED STATES.

        17  A.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. BOIES.

        18  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO BEGIN WITH GETTING A LITTLE BIT OF

        19  YOUR BACKGROUND.

        20           YOUR PRESENT POSITION IS WHAT?

        21  A.   MY PRESENT POSITION AT COMPAQ IS SENIOR VICE

        22  PRESIDENT, GROUP GENERAL MANAGER FOR THE ENTERPRISE SYSTEM

        23  BUSINESS AT COMPAQ.  THAT INCLUDES 12 DIVISIONS AND

        24  THE--ALL OF THE ENTERPRISE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY.

        25  Q.   AND PRIOR TO THAT, WHAT WAS YOUR POSITION?
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         1  A.   PRIOR TO--WELL, LET ME GO BACK A BIT, MR. BOIES.  I

         2  JOINED COMPAQ IN JUNE OF 1993.  AT THAT TIME, IN THE

         3  POSITION OF SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, GROUP GENERAL MANAGER

         4  RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESKTOP DIVISION, WHICH INCLUDED THE

         5  CREATION START AND INTRODUCTION OF THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS,

         6  SO I LAUNCHED THE PRESARIO BUSINESS.

         7           ULTIMATELY, I CREATED A SEPARATE DIVISION AND

         8  TOOK IT TO THE BOARD, WHICH WAS THE SEPARATE CONSUMER

         9  DIVISION IN JANUARY OF 1995, AND THEN I MANAGED THE

        10  CONSUMER DIVISION IN ADDITION TO THE DESKTOP DIVISION

        11  UNTIL WE HIRED A CONSUMER EXPERT, MR. MIKE HEIL, IN

        12  SEPTEMBER OF 1995.

        13           IN FEBRUARY OF 1996 WE SET FORTH ON A NEW

        14  STRATEGY FOR COMPAQ, AND THAT WAS TO MOVE COMPAQ TO BE AN

        15  ENTERPRISE LEADER IN THE INDUSTRY.

        16           AND BY MAY OF '96, WE REORGANIZED THE COMPANY,

        17  AND I TOOK OVER AS THE HEAD OF THE ENTERPRISE BUSINESS FOR

        18  COMPAQ.

        19  Q.   THE DESKTOP DIVISION, DOES THAT STILL EXIST?

        20  A.   THE DESKTOP DIVISION--YES, IT EXISTS AS A DIVISION

        21  TODAY.  IT'S A PART OF THE LARGER GROUP WHICH IS CALLED

        22  THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP, WHICH INCLUDES DESKTOPS, PORTABLES,

        23  SMALL BUSINESS PRODUCTS, OPTIONS.

        24  Q.   THERE IS A PC PRODUCTS GROUP, AND THEN THERE IS AN

        25  ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS GROUP; IS THAT RIGHT?
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         1  A.   IT'S CALLED THE ENTERPRISE COMPUTING GROUP, AND

         2  THAT'S THE BUSINESS THAT I RUN.  THAT INCORPORATES 12

         3  DIVISIONS IN THE COMPANY.

         4  Q.   ENTERPRISE COMPUTING GROUP?

         5  A.   YES.  IF YOU WOULD LIKE, I WILL EXPLAIN WHAT THOSE 12

         6  DIVISIONS ARE.

         7  Q.   I DON'T OBJECT, BUT I DON'T NEED IT, EITHER.

         8  A.   FINE.

         9  Q.   WHO IS THE HEAD OF THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP?

        10  A.   THE HEAD OF THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP IS MR. MICHAEL

        11  WINKLER, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, GROUP GENERAL MANAGER, PC

        12  PRODUCTS GROUP.

        13  Q.   NOW, THE PRODUCTS THAT COMPAQ PUTS WINDOWS 98

        14  OPERATING SYSTEMS ON--

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   --ARE THOSE PRODUCTS IN THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP OR THE

        17  ENTERPRISE COMPUTING GROUP, OR BOTH?

        18  A.   THE PRODUCTS THAT COMPAQ PUTS WINDOWS 98 ON ARE IN

        19  THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP, WHICH IS A SEPARATE ONE, AND

        20  THEY'RE IN THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP WITHIN A NUMBER OF

        21  DIVISIONS.

        22           AND THEN THERE ARE ALSO SOME DESKTOP DEVICES IN

        23  THE FORM OF WORK STATIONS.  WE DON'T PUT WINDOWS ON THOSE,

        24  BUT WE DO PUT WINDOWS NT ON THOSE.

        25  Q.   DO I UNDERSTAND YOUR LAST QUESTION TO BE THAT IN
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         1  ADDITION TO THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP AND THE ENTERPRISE

         2  COMPUTING GROUP, THERE IS SOMETHING CALLED THE "CONSUMER

         3  PRODUCTS GROUP"?

         4  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         5  Q.   WHO HEADS THAT?

         6  A.   THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP IS--WELL, WE JUST DID A

         7  CHANGE WITHIN THE LAST 30 DAYS.  IT'S MR. MICHAEL LARSON.

         8  Q.   WHO WAS IT BEFORE MR. LARSON?

         9  A.   MR. ROD SCHROCK.

        10           AND PRIOR TO MR. ROD SCHROCK, IT WAS MR. HEIL,

        11  MICHAEL HEIL.

        12  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR EITHER THE

        13  CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP OR THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP?

        14  A.   I HAVE NO DIRECT RESPONSIBILITY TODAY FOR EITHER THE

        15  CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP OR THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP.

        16           I DO HAVE SOME RESPONSIBILITY IN THAT I WAS THE

        17  PERSON THAT STARTED COMPAQ INTO THE CONSUMER DIVISION, AND

        18  I'M SOMEWHAT REFERRED TO AS THE FATHER OF THE PRESARIO.

        19  SO, THERE IS SOME RELATIONSHIP THERE, THOUGH NOT DIRECT

        20  ACCOUNTABILITY.

        21  Q.   OKAY.  WHEN WAS THE LAST TIME YOU HAD CONTINUING

        22  RESPONSIBILITY OTHER THAN SORT OF PARENTAL PRIDE IN THE

        23  CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP OR THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP?

        24  A.   THE LAST TIME I HAD PROFIT-AND-LOSS

        25  ACCOUNTABILITY--AND I WILL USE THAT AS A MEASUREMENT OF
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         1  ACCOUNTABILITY--FOR THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP WAS JUNE OF

         2  1996; AND FOR THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP, IT WAS IN

         3  SEPTEMBER, ACTUALLY AUGUST--IT ENDED IN AUGUST, THE

         4  BEGINNING OF SEPTEMBER--OF 1995.

         5  Q.   NOW, AS I UNDERSTOOD YOUR TESTIMONY, TODAY, COMPAQ

         6  WOULD BE INSTALLING WINDOWS 98 PRODUCTS ON PRODUCTS IN THE

         7  CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP AND PRODUCTS IN THE PC PRODUCTS

         8  GROUP; IS THAT TRUE?

         9  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        10  Q.   WITH RESPECT TO WINDOWS 95, DID COMPAQ INSTALL

        11  WINDOWS 95 ON PRODUCTS IN BOTH THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP

        12  AND THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP?

        13  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        14  Q.   BUT NOT THE ENTERPRISE COMPUTING GROUP; IS THAT

        15  CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        17  Q.   DOES THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP INSTALL OPERATING

        18  SYSTEMS OTHER THAN MICROSOFT WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEMS ON

        19  PC PRODUCTS TODAY?

        20  A.   COULD YOU REPEAT YOUR QUESTION FOR ME, PLEASE?

        21  Q.   SURE.

        22           FOCUSING ON THE PRESENT TIME--

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   --AND FOCUSING ON THE PERSONAL COMPUTERS MARKETED BY

        25  THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP, AM I CORRECT THAT ALL OF
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         1  THOSE PC'S ARE SHIPPED BY COMPAQ WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM

         2  INSTALLED?

         3  A.   WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM INSTALLED.  IN THE CONSUMER

         4  GROUP FOR THE PRESARIO BRAND OF PRODUCTS, WE SHIP WITH AN

         5  OPERATING SYSTEM INSTALLED.  IN THE OTHER BRANDS OF

         6  DESKTOP OR PORTABLES, WE MAY OR MAY NOT.  AND SOMETIMES,

         7  SOME OF THOSE PRODUCTS WIND UP WITHIN CONSUMER CHANNELS,

         8  SO THE SAME CONSUMER RETAIL CHANNEL WILL CARRY THE

         9  PRESARIO BRAND, BUT IT ALSO MAY CARRY SOME OTHER COMPAQ

        10  BRANDS THAT ARE NOT THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONSUMER

        11  GROUP, BUT THEY ARE OF THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP.

        12  Q.   WHAT I WANT TO DO IS TRY TO TAKE THE CONSUMER

        13  PRODUCTS GROUP AND THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP, IF I CAN TRY TO

        14  KEEP THINGS CLEAR.

        15  A.   THEN LET'S TRY TO STICK WITH THE PRESARIO BRAND

        16  BECAUSE THAT IS 100 PERCENT CONSUMER.  IT WILL HELP US,

        17  HELP ME.

        18  Q.   WELL, DOES THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP HAVE

        19  RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BRANDS OTHER THAN THE PRESARIO?

        20  A.   NO, I BELIEVE IT'S JUST THE PRESARIO BRAND OR

        21  SUBBRAND TODAY.

        22  Q.   OKAY.  SO, THAT'S THE ONLY PRODUCT OR GROUP OF

        23  PRODUCTS OF THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP?

        24  A.   YES, I BELIEVE THAT TO BE CORRECT.

        25  Q.   OKAY.  AND ALL OF THE PERSONAL COMPUTERS THAT ARE
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         1  MARKETED BY THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP ARE PRESARIO PC'S,

         2  AND THEY ALL COME WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT?

         3  A.   YES, THAT IS CORRECT.

         4  Q.   AND THEY ALL COME WITH A MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM;

         5  IS THAT CORRECT?

         6  A.   YES, THAT IS CORRECT.

         7  Q.   NOW, I WANT TO TURN TO THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP.

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   AND THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP SOMETIMES SUPPLIES PC'S

        10  WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM AND SOMETIMES SUPPLIES PC'S

        11  WITHOUT AN OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT?

        12  A.   YES, THAT IS CORRECT.

        13  Q.   WHAT PERCENTAGE OF THE PERSONAL COMPUTERS SUPPLIED BY

        14  COMPAQ'S PC PRODUCTS GROUP COME WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM?

        15  A.   I'M NOT SURE WHAT THAT PERCENTAGE WOULD BE, BUT I

        16  WOULD EXPECT THE PREDOMINANCE IS WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM.

        17           WE HAVE LOTS OF--IF I MAY ELABORATE A LITTLE BIT,

        18  WE HAVE LOTS OF CORPORATE CUSTOMERS THAT SEPARATELY

        19  LICENSE THEIR SOFTWARE, AND IN MANY CASES WHAT THEY DO IS

        20  THEY CLEAR THE DECK--CLEAR THE DISK OF THE SOFTWARE THAT

        21  WE SHIP AND PUT THEIR OWN IMAGE ONTO THE PC.

        22  Q.   AND WHAT I'M TRYING TO DO IS GET A SENSE OF THAT

        23  OTHER THAN THAT'S LESS THAN THE PREDOMINANT SHARE.

        24           CAN YOU GIVE ME ANY ESTIMATE OF WHAT PERCENTAGE,

        25  RECOGNIZING IT'S NOT GOING TO BE EXACT, OF THE PC
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         1  PRODUCT--PRODUCTS GROUP PERSONAL COMPUTERS COME WITH AN

         2  OPERATING SYSTEM INSTALLED?

         3  A.   I WOULD EXPECT THAT IT'S IN THE RANGE OF 90 PERCENT

         4  OF THE PRODUCTS WOULD COME WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM, AND

         5  THEN THE CUSTOMER MAY OR MAY NOT KEEP THAT IMAGE THAT'S ON

         6  THERE.

         7  Q.   NOW, OF THE PERSONAL COMPUTERS SUPPLIED BY THE PC

         8  PRODUCTS GROUP WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM INSTALLED, ARE ALL

         9  OF THOSE OPERATING SYSTEMS MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEMS?

        10  A.   NO, THEY'RE NOT.

        11  Q.   WHAT PERCENTAGE ARE MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEMS?

        12  A.   I WOULD EXPECT OF THAT, 90 PERCENT--PROBABLY 80 TO 90

        13  PERCENT WOULD BE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEMS.

        14           HOWEVER, IN THERE WE HAVE--WE HAVE SYSTEMS THAT

        15  GO WITHOUT AN OPERATING SYSTEM THAT SUPPORT LINUX.  WE

        16  HAVE SANTA CRUZ, UNIX, WE HAVE NOVELL, AND THERE IS (SIC)

        17  PROBABLY SOME OTHERS IN THERE.

        18  Q.   I'M NOT SURE I UNDERSTOOD THE LAST ANSWER.

        19           NINETY PERCENT OF THE PC PRODUCTS GROUPS PERSONAL

        20  COMPUTERS COME WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM?

        21  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        22  Q.   AND IT'S YOUR ESTIMATE THAT 80 TO 90 PERCENT OF THOSE

        23  OPERATING SYSTEMS ARE MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEMS; IS THAT

        24  CORRECT?

        25  A.   OF THOSE PC'S THAT COME--SHIP WITH AN OPERATING
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         1  SYSTEM, THE PREDOMINANCE--AND I WOULD GUESS THAT IT'S IN

         2  THE RANGE OF 80 TO 90 PERCENT--ARE (SIC) WINDOWS, THE

         3  VARIOUS VERSIONS OF WINDOWS.

         4  Q.   NOW, WITH RESPECT TO THE 10 TO 20 PERCENT OF THE

         5  OPERATING SYSTEMS THAT ARE SHIPPED BY THE PC PRODUCTS

         6  GROUP, OTHER THAN THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEMS, WHAT

         7  OPERATING SYSTEMS--

         8  A.   ARE IN THERE?

         9  Q.   YES.

        10  A.   LINUX, WHICH IS AN OPEN-SOURCE UNIX OPERATING SYSTEM;

        11  SANTA CRUZ.  THERE'S NOVELL PRODUCTS IN THERE.  AND I'M

        12  NOT SURE WHO ELSE, BUT I EXPECT THERE ARE SOME OTHERS.

        13  Q.   BY NOVELL PRODUCTS, YOU MEAN A NOVELL OPERATING

        14  SYSTEM?

        15  A.   NETWARE.

        16  Q.   NETWARE.  AND YOU CONSIDER NOVELL NETWARE TO BE AN

        17  OPERATING SYSTEM?

        18  A.   WELL, YES, IT WOULD BE IN THE CATEGORY OF--I WOULD

        19  CONSIDER IT TO BE IN THE CATEGORY OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM.

        20  Q.   AND--

        21  A.   WE SHIP IT FOR SERVERS AS WELL.

        22  Q.   DOES THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP SUPPLY SERVERS?

        23  A.   YES.  THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP SELLS A SERVER THAT'S

        24  DEVELOPED BY THE ENTERPRISE GROUP, AND THAT'S CALLED THE

        25  PROSIGNIA BRAND, WHICH IS A SMALL BUSINESS SERVER FOR THE
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         1  SMALL OFFICE AND SMALL BUSINESS.

         2  Q.   WHAT PERCENTAGE OF ALL OF THE PERSONAL COMPUTERS

         3  SUPPLIED BY MICROSOFT ARE SUPPLIED BY THE CONSUMER

         4  PRODUCTS GROUP?

         5           THE COURT:  I DON'T UNDERSTAND THAT QUESTION.

         6  TRY IT AGAIN.

         7  BY MR. BOIES:

         8  Q.   AS I UNDERSTAND IT, COMPAQ SUPPLIES PERSONAL

         9  COMPUTERS THROUGH THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP AND THROUGH

        10  THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP.

        11  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        12  Q.   AND WHAT I'M TRYING TO FIGURE OUT IS, OF ALL THE

        13  PERSONAL COMPUTERS COMPAQ SUPPLIES, HOW IS IT BROKEN DOWN

        14  BETWEEN THOSE TWO GROUPS?  THAT IS, WHAT IS THE PERCENTAGE

        15  THAT THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP SUPPLIES AND WHAT IS THE

        16  PERCENTAGE THAT THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP SUPPLIES?

        17  A.   I WOULD EXPECT THAT APPROXIMATELY 75 PERCENT OF THE

        18  DESKTOP DEVICES--AND THAT'S DESKTOP AND PORTABLE--THOSE

        19  FORM FACTORS ARE SUPPLIED BY THE PC PRODUCTS GROUP.

        20           ABOUT A THIRD OF THE ANNUAL VOLUME FOR THAT

        21  CATEGORY OF PRODUCTS IS IN THE PRESARIO BRAND, I WOULD

        22  ESTIMATE, BY THE CONSUMER GROUP.

        23  Q.   I'M NOT SURE I UNDERSTOOD THAT.

        24  A.   OKAY, LET ME TRY TO CLARIFY THAT FOR THE COURT.

        25           IF YOU TOOK A LOOK AT COMPAQ'S TOTAL VOLUME OF
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         1  PERSONAL COMPUTERS THAT WE SELL--AND I BELIEVE FOR THE

         2  LAST YEAR THAT WAS OVER 10 MILLION--AND IF YOU TAKE OUT

         3  THE SERVER FORM FACTORS AND THE WORK STATION--THOSE--THE

         4  WORK STATION IS A CLIENT DEVICE THAT'S AN ENTERPRISE-CLASS

         5  DEVICE.  IF YOU TOOK THOSE OUT--AND WE SOLD OVER A MILLION

         6  SERVERS LAST YEAR, SO LET'S TAKE THAT DOWN TO ABOUT 9

         7  MILLION, OF THAT 9 MILLION, THE PREDOMINANT FORM FACTOR

         8  WOULD BE THE DESKTOP FORM FACTOR THAT'S HERE IN THE COURT,

         9  AND THE PORTABLE.

        10           SO, OUT OF THAT 9 MILLION COMBINED, 75 PERCENT, I

        11  WOULD EXPECT, ARE NON-PRESARIO, THEREFORE COMING FROM THE

        12  PC PRODUCTS GROUP.  ABOUT 25 PERCENT OF THE VOLUME WOULD

        13  BE PRESARIO CONSUMER-BRANDED PC'S.

        14  Q.   FOCUSING FIRST ON THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP, AM I

        15  CORRECT THAT COMPAQ BELIEVES THAT IT DOES NOT HAVE ANY

        16  COMMERCIALLY VIABLE ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS AS AN OPERATING

        17  SYSTEM FOR THE PERSONAL COMPUTERS SUPPLIED BY THE CONSUMER

        18  PRODUCTS GROUP?

        19  A.   YES, BUT--

        20           THE WITNESS:  YOUR HONOR, IF I COULD EXPLAIN THAT

        21  POINT?

        22           THE COURT:  YOU COULD ALWAYS EXPLAIN AFTER GIVING

        23  A YES, NO, OR I-DON'T-KNOW ANSWER.

        24           THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

        25           THE COURT:  OKAY.
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         1           THE WITNESS:  ALL THE WAY BACK TO 1993, WE HAD A

         2  VISION FOR THE PRESARIO PRODUCT, WHICH IS THE CONSUMER

         3  PRODUCT.  AND THAT WAS THAT IT WAS NOT JUST A PERSONAL

         4  COMPUTER, BUT IT REALLY WAS A CENTER OF INFORMATION,

         5  ENTERTAINMENT, AND COMMUNICATIONS.  SO, IT REALLY WAS A

         6  PARADIGM-SHIFTING DEVICE.  AND WHAT WE CENTERED AND CHOSE

         7  WAS THAT WINDOWS WAS THE BEST OPERATING SYSTEM TO EVOLVE

         8  THERE, AND THAT'S CONTINUED TO BE THE CASE OVER THE PAST

         9  SIX YEARS.

        10           IF SOMETHING CHANGES AND THERE IS A BETTER

        11  OPERATING SYSTEM THAT FITS THAT STRATEGIC DIRECTION OF

        12  BEING MORE THAN JUST A PERSONAL COMPUTER, BUT REALLY BEING

        13  A PARADIGM-SHIFTING DEVICE THAT'S VERY

        14  COMMUNICATION-CENTRIC, VERY ENTERTAINMENT-CENTRIC, VERY

        15  EDUCATIONAL AS WELL AS COMPUTING.

        16           THE COURT:  UNTIL THAT MATERIALIZES, THEN THERE

        17  IS NO COMMERCIALLY VIABLE ALTERNATIVE TO THE WINDOWS

        18  OPERATING SYSTEM?

        19           THE WITNESS:  THAT'S OUR VIEW, YOUR HONOR.

        20           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        21  BY MR. BOIES:

        22  Q.   AND AM I CORRECT THAT IT IS YOUR VIEW THAT THAT IS

        23  TRUE, IN LARGE PART, BECAUSE OF WHAT YOU HAVE REFERRED TO

        24  AS THE 70,000 APPLICATIONS THAT EXIST FOR THE WINDOWS

        25  OPERATING SYSTEM?
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         1  A.   YES, THAT IS PART OF THE RATIONALE.  WHAT COMPAQ IS

         2  DRIVEN FOR THE LAST 17 YEARS THAT WE HAVE BEEN IN THE

         3  COMPUTER BUSINESS IS THIS CONCEPT OF OPEN-INDUSTRY

         4  STANDARDS, AND WE PARTNERED WITH MICROSOFT ON THERE AS

         5  WELL AS OTHER PARTNERS.

         6           AND WHAT THAT HAS RESULTED IN IS AN OPEN-INDUSTRY

         7  STANDARD WHERE LITERALLY HUNDREDS OF PEOPLE CAN

         8  MANUFACTURE PC'S, HUNDREDS OF COMPANIES MANUFACTURE

         9  OPTIONS FOR PC'S--WE CALL THOSE INDEPENDENT HARDWARE

        10  VENDORS--THOUSANDS OF COMPANIES HAVE CREATED A PORTFOLIO

        11  OF 70,000 APPLICATIONS, AND THEN THERE HAS BEEN LOTS

        12  OF--LITERALLY THOUSANDS OF RETAIL PARTNERS OR CHANNEL

        13  PARTNERS.

        14           IN FACT, WE AT COMPAQ TODAY HAVE OVER 40,000

        15  CHANNEL PARTNERS.

        16           AND THE REAL END RESULT, BECAUSE THIS HAS BEEN

        17  PRO-CUSTOMER, IS THE CUSTOMER HAS BEEN ABLE TO GET MORE

        18  CAPABILITY EACH YEAR FOR LESS (SIC) DOLLARS.  SO, THE

        19  70,000 APPLICATIONS IS ONLY ONE ELEMENT OF THAT TOTAL

        20  STORY.

        21  Q.   WELL, YOU BELIEVE THAT THE FACT THAT THERE ARE 70,000

        22  APPLICATIONS FOR THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM IS NOT ONLY

        23  A REASON BUT A PRIME REASON WHY YOU DO NOT HAVE A

        24  COMMERCIALLY VIABLE ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS AT THE PRESENT

        25  TIME; CORRECT, SIR?
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         1  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT I WOULD CALL IT--IT CERTAINLY IS A

         2  PRIME REASON.

         3           WHAT'S IMPORTANT IS THE WHOLE CONCEPT OF

         4  COMPATIBILITY.  AND BY COMPATIBILITY, ANY OF THE

         5  APPLICATIONS THAT WERE WRITTEN UP TO 17 YEARS AGO CAN

         6  STILL RUN ON THE CUSTOMER'S PC.  SO, THE CUSTOMER CAN HAVE

         7  CONFIDENCE THAT THE DATA THAT THEY HAVE ON THEIR PERSONAL

         8  COMPUTERS THEY CAN RUN ON ANY OF OUR COMPETITOR'S

         9  COMPUTERS AND THEY COULD RUN IT ON ANY VERSION, AND THEY

        10  COULD GO BACKWARDS OR THEY COULD GO FORWARDS.  AND THAT'S

        11  THE REAL VALUE OF THIS WHOLE OPEN-INDUSTRY STANDARD.

        12  Q.   JUST TO BE CLEAR, WHEN YOU SAY THAT THE CUSTOMERS CAN

        13  RUN ANY OF YOUR APPLICATIONS ON ANY OF YOUR COMPETITOR'S

        14  COMPUTERS, THAT WOULD BE TRUE ONLY IF YOUR COMPETITOR'S

        15  COMPUTERS WERE ALSO RUNNING THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM;

        16  CORRECT, SIR?

        17  A.   IT WOULD BE TRUE--YES, IT WOULD BE TRUE IF THEY WERE

        18  RUNNING THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM AND THEY COMPLIED

        19  WITH THE STANDARDS, SO THAT THEIR HARDWARE WAS TRULY

        20  COMPLIANT WITH THE ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS.

        21  Q.   AND, INDEED, THERE ARE OTHER QUALIFICATIONS, TOO--

        22  A.   ABSOLUTELY.

        23  Q.   --IN THE SENSE THAT IF YOU HAD A WINDOWS 98

        24  APPLICATION, IT MIGHT NOT RUN ON WINDOWS 95 OR

        25  WINDOWS 3.1; CORRECT?
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         1  A.   YOU WOULD EXPECT TO CARRY FORWARD THE DATA, THE

         2  CUSTOMER'S DATA.  YOU KNOW, YOU MAY HAVE TO UPGRADE THAT,

         3  BUT THE CONSISTENCY IS THERE THROUGHOUT THE YEARS.

         4  Q.   LET ME BE SURE WE ARE COMMUNICATING.

         5  A.   OKAY.

         6  Q.   IF YOU GOT AN APPLICATION THAT RUNS ON WINDOWS 3.1,

         7  YOU WOULD EXPECT THAT THAT APPLICATION WOULD RUN ON

         8  WINDOWS 98; CORRECT?

         9  A.   I WOULD EXPECT THAT THE CUSTOMER COULD BE ABLE TO USE

        10  THEIR PLATFORM AND TAKE THAT APPLICATION FROM 3.1 AND

        11  CARRY IT FORWARD INTO A WINDOWS 98 ENVIRONMENT.

        12  Q.   WOULD YOU ALSO EXPECT THAT ANY APPLICATION THAT IS

        13  WRITTEN FOR WINDOWS 98 WOULD SIMILARLY BE ABLE TO RUN ON

        14  WINDOWS 3.1?  THAT IS, COMPATIBILITY GOING IN THE OTHER

        15  DIRECTION?

        16  A.   I WOULD EXPECT THAT NOT NECESSARILY TO OCCUR BECAUSE

        17  EACH YEAR IN THE HARDWARE AS WELL AS THE SOFTWARE, WE'RE

        18  CONSTANTLY--ALL OF US IN THIS INDUSTRY ARE ADDING MORE

        19  FEATURES AND ADDING MORE CAPABILITY.  SO, YOU DON'T

        20  NECESSARILY EXPECT THE ADVANCED FEATURES TO GO BACKWARDS.

        21  Q.   NOW, JUST SO WE HAVE A COMMON SET OF LANGUAGE, WHICH

        22  ONE OF THOSE DO YOU CALL "FORWARD COMPATIBILITY," AND

        23  WHICH ONE OF THOSE DO YOU CALL "BACKWARD COMPATIBILITY"?

        24  A.   WELL, FORWARD COMPATIBILITY WOULD BE TO TAKE THE

        25  THINGS FROM HISTORY AND BE ABLE TO CARRY THEM FORWARD INTO
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         1  NEW ENVIRONMENTS; NEW DESKTOP DEVICES AS AN EXAMPLE.

         2  Q.   AND BACKWARD COMPATIBILITY WOULD BE GOING FROM THE

         3  WINDOWS 98 TO THE 3.1?

         4  A.   YOU WOULD STILL HAVE BACKWARD COMPATIBILITY IN THAT

         5  OLDER VERSIONS OF YOUR SOFTWARE WOULD RUN IN THE NEWER

         6  VERSION TIME FRAME, BUT WOULD NOT NECESSARILY--WOULD NOT

         7  TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THE FEATURES.  SO, YOU COULD SAY IT'S

         8  BACKWARD-COMPATIBLE TO A POINT.

         9  Q.   ALL I'M TRYING TO DO, TO BEGIN WITH, IS TO GET AN

        10  UNDERSTANDING OF WHICH WAY IS FORWARD AND WHICH WAY IS

        11  BACK.  I'M MOVING FROM 3.1 TO WINDOWS 98.

        12  A.   FORWARD.

        13  Q.   AND MOVING FROM WINDOWS 98 TO 3.1 IS BACKWARDS

        14  COMPATIBILITY AS YOU USE THAT TERM?

        15  A.   I USE THE TERM THAT IT IS BACKWARD-COMPATIBLE FOR

        16  SOME OF THE CAPABILITY, SO I USE BOTH TERMS.  GENERALLY

        17  WHAT WE USE IS WE SAY IT'S COMPATIBLE, AND WE DON'T SPLIT

        18  THE HAIRS BETWEEN FORWARD AND BACKWARDS.

        19  Q.   IS THE TERM "FORWARD COMPATIBILITY" AND "BACKWARD

        20  COMPATIBILITY," ARE THOSE TERMS THAT YOU ARE FAMILIAR WITH

        21  IN THE INDUSTRY?

        22  A.   I'M FAMILIAR WITH THOSE TERMS, BUT THOSE ARE NOT

        23  TERMS THAT WE USE IN OUR ORIENTATION TO OUR CUSTOMERS.  WE

        24  USE THE TERM "COMPATIBILITY."  AND COMPAQ, FOR THE LAST 17

        25  YEARS, HAS REALLY BEEN THE STANDARD-KEEPER FOR THE--FOR
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         1  THIS DEFINITION OF COMPATIBILITY.  WE HAVE THE RICHEST

         2  TESTING INVESTMENT IN COMPATIBILITY.

         3  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU TEST COMPATIBILITY, DO YOU TEST

         4  COMPATIBILITY GOING FROM OLDER MACHINES TO NEWER MACHINES?

         5  A.   BOTH WAYS.

         6  Q.   BOTH WAYS?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   AND IF YOU FIND THAT APPLICATIONS WRITTEN FOR THE

         9  NEWER MACHINES WILL NOT RUN ON THE OLDER MACHINES, DOES

        10  THAT INDICATE A LACK OF COMPATIBILITY AS YOU USE THAT

        11  TERM?

        12  A.   NO, THAT MAY NOT DETERMINE A LACK OF COMPATIBILITY.

        13  WHAT IT MAY DETERMINE IS SOME OF THE NEW FEATURES WILL NOT

        14  RUN UNLESS YOU MAKE SOME UPGRADES OR ADDITIONS TO THE

        15  PREVIOUS HARDWARE, AND THAT COULD BE BY ADDING MEMORY TO

        16  YOUR EXISTING PERSONAL COMPUTER.  THAT COULD BE BY ADDING

        17  OTHER OPTIONS.

        18  Q.   IS IT ONLY ADDING HARDWARE THAT YOU HAVE TO DO, SIR?

        19  A.   IT COULD BE HARDWARE OR IT COULD BE SOFTWARE.  IT

        20  COULD BE BOTH.

        21  Q.   IN OTHER WORDS, EVEN IF YOU HAD EXACTLY THE SAME

        22  HARDWARE, YOU MIGHT HAVE APPLICATIONS THAT WERE WRITTEN

        23  FOR A NEWER OPERATING SYSTEM THAT WOULD NOT RUN IF YOU HAD

        24  THE OLDER OPERATING SYSTEM?

        25  A.   YOU MAY HAVE TO RECOMPILE THE APPLICATION.
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         1  Q.   RIGHT.

         2  A.   THAT'S BEEN--THAT'S BEEN COMMON THROUGH, AT LEAST, MY

         3  EXPERIENCE IN THE LAST 30 YEARS IN THIS INDUSTRY WITH BOTH

         4  OPEN-INDUSTRY STANDARDS AS WELL AS WITH, YOU KNOW,

         5  PROPRIETARY OPERATING SYSTEMS, WHETHER IT BE MAINFRAMES,

         6  MINICOMPUTERS OR PC TECHNOLOGY-BASED PRODUCTS.

         7  Q.   NOW, BACK TO THE QUESTION I STARTED WITH, THERE ARE

         8  70,000 APPLICATIONS, APPROXIMATELY, FOR THE WINDOWS

         9  OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT?

        10  A.   THERE ARE APPROXIMATELY 70,000 PC APPLICATIONS.  NOT

        11  ALL OF THEM WERE WRITTEN FOR WINDOWS.  SOME OF THEM GO

        12  BACK TO THE DOS ENVIRONMENT AND CARRY FORWARD INTO THE

        13  WINDOWS ENVIRONMENT.  BUT OVER THE COURSE OF THE 17 YEARS

        14  OF THE PC INDUSTRY, THERE HAS BEEN APPROXIMATELY 70,000

        15  APPLICATIONS DEVELOPED, AND THAT CONTINUES TO GROW.

        16  Q.   ARE THERE 70,000 APPLICATIONS APPROXIMATELY, AS YOU

        17  UNDERSTAND IT, THAT CAN BE RUN ON WINDOWS 95 AND

        18  WINDOWS 98?

        19  A.   THERE ARE APPROXIMATELY THAT.  WE DON'T TEST ALL 70

        20  BECAUSE YOU REACH A POINT OF DIMINISHING RETURNS ON JUST

        21  HOW MUCH YOU CAN SPEND TO TEST.  BUT WE TAKE A ROBUST

        22  SUBSET OF THE OLDER VERSIONS AND THE NEWER VERSIONS, AND

        23  WE DO COMPREHENSIVE COMPATIBILITY TESTING OF THOSE.

        24  Q.   NOW, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT THE ABSENCE OF ANY OTHER

        25  OPERATING SYSTEM THAT CAN RUN THOSE 70,000 APPLICATIONS OR

                                                           25

         1  ANY PREDOMINANT CHUNK OF THEM IS A PRIME REASON WHY YOU

         2  BELIEVE THERE IS NOT A PRESENT COMMERCIALLY VIABLE

         3  ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS?

         4  A.   YES, THAT IS PART OF IT.

         5  Q.   OKAY.

         6  A.   THE FACT THAT OTHER OPERATING ENVIRONMENTS DO NOT

         7  SUPPORT THAT RICH SET OF APPLICATIONS WHICH ARE BEING

         8  UTILIZED BY HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF PERSONAL COMPUTER

         9  USERS.

        10  Q.   NOW, WITHOUT GOING INTO, ON THE PUBLIC RECORD, ANY

        11  SPECIFIC NUMBERS, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT IN 1998 THE PRICE

        12  THAT WAS CHARGED COMPAQ BY MICROSOFT INCREASED

        13  SIGNIFICANTLY FOR THE OPERATING SYSTEMS THAT MICROSOFT

        14  SUPPLIES?

        15  A.   COULD YOU REPEAT YOUR QUESTION, PLEASE?

        16  Q.   CERTAINLY.

        17           IN 1998, COMPAQ AND MICROSOFT ENTERED INTO A NEW

        18  CONTRACT; CORRECT?

        19  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        20  Q.   AND THAT NEW CONTRACT CHANGED THE PRICE THAT COMPAQ

        21  WAS PAYING FOR MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEMS; CORRECT?

        22  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        23  Q.   AND THE PRICE THAT COMPAQ WAS PAYING FOR THE WINDOWS

        24  OPERATING SYSTEM INCREASED SIGNIFICANTLY PURSUANT TO THAT

        25  CONTRACT, THAT NEW CONTRACT LAST YEAR; CORRECT?
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         1  A.   I WOULD SAY THAT THE PRICE FOR WINDOWS OPERATING

         2  SYSTEM, WINDOWS 98 SPECIFICALLY, WITHIN THE NEW FRONTLINE

         3  PARTNERSHIP THAT WE ESTABLISHED IN MARCH OF '98, THERE WAS

         4  AN INCREASE IN COMPAQ'S LICENSE FEE FOR THE OPERATING

         5  SYSTEM.  I WOULD NOT USE YOUR TERMINOLOGY "SIGNIFICANT."

         6  Q.   YOU WOULD NOT CALL IT SIGNIFICANT, SIR?

         7  A.   I WOULD SAY IT WAS A PRICE INCREASE, YES.

         8  Q.   I KNOW IT WAS A PRICE INCREASE, BUT I'M ASKING YOU

         9  NOW--AND IF WE CAN'T GET AGREEMENT ON WHETHER IT'S

        10  SIGNIFICANT OR NOT, WE WILL PASS THIS UNTIL WE GET INTO

        11  CLOSED SESSION.  I WANT TO KNOW WHETHER IT'S YOUR

        12  TESTIMONY TO THE COURT THAT YOU DO NOT CONSIDER THAT

        13  INCREASE TO BE SIGNIFICANT.

        14  A.   I WOULD STILL NOT USE THE WORD "SIGNIFICANT" THERE.

        15  CERTAINLY THE COST INCREASED, AS WE EXPECTED IT WOULD

        16  BECAUSE OF THE FUNCTIONALITY CHANGING, AND THE FACT THAT

        17  WE HAD AN OUTSTANDING AGREEMENT FOR FIVE YEARS.

        18  Q.   RIGHT NOW, I'M SIMPLY ASKING WHETHER THE PRICE WENT

        19  UP, AND YOU SAID YES.

        20  A.   YES, IT DID.

        21  Q.   AND I SECOND ASKED WHETHER YOU BELIEVED THAT THAT

        22  INCREASE WAS A SIGNIFICANT INCREASE, AND I TAKE IT YOUR

        23  ANSWER IS NO.

        24  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        25           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, MAY WE APPROACH THE
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         1  BENCH?

         2           THE COURT:  CERTAINLY.

         3           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)

         4           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD LIKE TO ASK HIM TO STATE THE

         5  APPROXIMATE PERCENTAGE INCREASE.  I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT

         6  THAT NUMBER IS THE KIND OF NUMBER THAT IS APPROPRIATE IN A

         7  TRIAL ON THE MERITS TO TAKE UNDER SEAL.  I HAVE THAT

         8  NUMBER FROM HIS DEPOSITION.

         9           THE COURT:  SURE.

        10           MR. BOIES:  IT IS CLEARLY, IN MY VIEW, A

        11  SIGNIFICANT INCREASE.  I WONDER WHY HE'S DECLINING TO

        12  ANSWER IT.

        13           THE COURT:  LET'S SEE WHAT COMPAQ HAS TO SAY FOR

        14  ITSELF.

        15           MR. COSTON:  THIS IS BILL COSTON, REPRESENTING

        16  COMPAQ.

        17           YOUR HONOR, IT IS MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THERE IS

        18  RECENTLY ONE DOCUMENT THAT HAS BEEN ADMITTED INTO

        19  EVIDENCE, A MICROSOFT DOCUMENT WHICH DOES LIST THE ACTUAL

        20  PRICE COMPAQ PAID UNDER THE 1992 AGREEMENT WHICH IS NOW

        21  EXPIRED.  IF THIS WITNESS WERE TO TESTIFY THERE WAS AN X

        22  PERCENT NET INCREASE IN THAT PRICE ONCE ANY MARKET

        23  DEVELOPMENT FUND AGREEMENTS WERE NETTED OUT, THEN THE

        24  PUBLIC WOULD KNOW TODAY WHAT PRICE COMPAQ IS PAYING FOR

        25  THE OPERATING SYSTEM.
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         1           THE COURT:  WHAT YOU'RE TELLING ME IS YOU WOULD

         2  LIKE TO TAKE IT UNDER SEAL?

         3           MR. COSTON:  YES, SIR.

         4           THE COURT:  IT'S GOING TO COME IN ONE WAY OR THE

         5  OTHER.

         6           MR. COSTON:  THAT'S FINE.

         7           THE COURT:  IT'S GOING TO BE A PART OF THE

         8  RECORD.

         9           MR. COSTON:  UNDER SEAL WAS MY POINT.  I THOUGHT

        10  THAT WAS THE POINT OF MR. BOIES'S QUESTION.

        11           MR. BOIES:  I DON'T KNOW WHAT DOCUMENT HE IS

        12  REFERRING TO, BUT IF THAT DOCUMENT WAS ADMITTED, THERE WAS

        13  AN OPPORTUNITY TO PUT IT UNDER SEAL.

        14           I THINK THE ISSUE OF WHETHER THEIR PRICE WENT UP

        15  SIGNIFICANTLY OR NOT IS AN ISSUE THAT IS SUFFICIENTLY

        16  IMPORTANT AND NOT SUFFICIENTLY PROTECTABLE.  I MEAN, THE

        17  STANDARDS THAT THE COURT KNOWS FOR WHAT--

        18           THE COURT:  I'M NOT GOING TO MAKE THAT

        19  DETERMINATION NOW.  I'M GOING TO LET YOU GET THE EVIDENCE,

        20  AND THAT MAY TURN OUT THAT AT SOME OTHER TIME I WILL

        21  DETERMINE IT'S NOT ENTITLED TO THE PROTECTION OF THE SEAL.

        22  BUT AT THIS POINT, IN THE LIGHT OF COMPAQ'S OBJECTION TO

        23  ITS BEING TAKEN ON THE PUBLIC RECORD, I WILL LET YOU GET

        24  THE INFORMATION, BUT I WILL CLOSE THE COURTROOM FIRST AND

        25  SEAL THE RECORD.
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         1           MR. BOIES:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL DO IT THAT WAY.

         2           THERE ARE MANY THINGS I HAVE TOLD THEM I'M GOING

         3  TO TAKE UNDER SEAL, ALL OF THE DETAILS OF PRICING, BUT

         4  JUST TO--

         5           THE COURT:  DO YOU WANT TO SAVE THAT FOR A LATER

         6  TIME, OR DO YOU WANT TO GET IT NOW?

         7           MR. BOIES:  I THINK I NEED TO GET THE PERCENTAGE

         8  ON THE RECORD NOW JUST SO THAT WE HAVE GOT SOME CONTINUITY

         9  OF THE RECORD.

        10           THE COURT:  FAIR ENOUGH.

        11           MR. COSTON:  AND THAT WILL BE IN A CLOSED

        12  PROCEEDING?

        13           THE COURT:  YES.

        14           (END OF BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        15           THE COURT:  WE WILL CLOSE THE COURTROOM VERY

        16  BRIEFLY AND TAKE A VERY SMALL AMOUNT OF TESTIMONY IN

        17  CAMERA AND UNDER SEAL.

        18           WE WILL TAKE A BRIEF RECESS.

        19           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        20      (PAGES 30 THROUGH 40 UNDER SEAL)

        21

        22

        23

        24

        25
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         1           (PROCEEDINGS IN OPEN COURT.)

         2                     RECROSS-EXAMINATION

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   MR. ROSE, IN THE SEALED SESSION, WE TALKED ABOUT THE

         5  INCREASE IN THE PRICE OF OR THE PRICE FOR OPERATING

         6  SYSTEMS THAT COMPAQ PAID TO MICROSOFT.

         7           AM I CORRECT THAT GIVEN THAT INCREASE, COMPAQ DID

         8  NOT, AS A RESULT OF THAT INCREASE, EVALUATE ANY OTHER

         9  OPERATING SYSTEMS FOR PRE-INSTALLATION ON ITS DESKTOP

        10  PC'S?

        11  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        12  Q.   NOW, AT YOUR DEPOSITION YOU TESTIFIED ABOUT YOUR

        13  VIEWS AS TO WHETHER THE APPEARANCE OF NEW OPERATING-SYSTEM

        14  COMPETITORS WOULD BE A GOOD THING OR A BAD THING.

        15           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        16  A.   SPECIFICALLY WHERE IN MY DEPOSITION?

        17  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO BE GIVEN YOUR DEPOSITION.  IT'S THE

        18  DEPOSITION THAT WAS TAKEN ON OCTOBER 20, 1998.

        19           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        20  Q.   BEFORE I DEAL WITH THAT, LET ME PUT BEFORE THE

        21  WITNESS, AND OFFER UNDER SEAL, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1856.

        22           THE COURT:  YOU SAY THIS DOCUMENT IS UNDER SEAL?

        23           MR. BOIES:  WE HAVE BEEN REQUESTED THAT IT BE

        24  OFFERED UNDER SEAL.  I'M OFFERING IT UNDER SEAL AT THE

        25  PRESENT TIME, SUBJECT TO LATER EVALUATION.
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         1           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         2           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, NO OBJECTION TO ITS

         3  ADMISSION UNDER SEAL.

         4           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1856

         5  IS ADMITTED UNDER SEAL.

         6                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1856 WAS

         7                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE UNDER

         8                          SEAL.)

         9  BY MR. BOIES:

        10  Q.   THIS IS A COMPAQ DOCUMENT DATED NOVEMBER 10, 1998;

        11  CORRECT, MR. ROSE?

        12  A.   YES, IT IS.

        13  Q.   AND ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THIS DOCUMENT?

        14  A.   NO, I AM NOT.  I HAVE NOT SEEN THIS DOCUMENT PRIOR TO

        15  RIGHT NOW.

        16  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE OF THE NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN COMPAQ AND

        17  MICROSOFT TO WHICH THIS DOCUMENT RELATES?

        18  A.   NO, I AM NOT.

        19  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE SECOND PAGE AND THE

        20  FIRST PARAGRAPH, THE SECOND SENTENCE.

        21           MR. BOIES:  MAY I INQUIRE WHETHER COMPAQ'S

        22  COUNSEL HAS THIS DOCUMENT?

        23           MR. COSTON:  YES, I DO, MR. BOIES.

        24           MR. BOIES:  AND IF THERE IS NO OBJECTION, I'M

        25  GOING TO READ THE FIRST CLAUSE OF THAT SENTENCE, WHICH I
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         1  DO NOT THINK NEEDS TO BE UNDER SEAL.

         2           MR. PEPPERMAN:  NO OBJECTION TO READING IT.

         3           THE COURT:  VERY WELL.

         4           MR. BOIES:  THIS STATES, "IN THE PAST,

         5  MICROSOFT'S OEM BUSINESS TERMS ARE INDICATIVE OF WHAT ONE

         6  WOULD EXPECT FROM A MONOPOLY."

         7  BY MR. BOIES:

         8  Q.   DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         9  A.   NO, I'M NOT--WHEREABOUTS ARE YOU, MR. BOIES?

        10           THE COURT:  PAGE TWO.

        11           THE WITNESS:  PAGE TWO, UNDER WHAT SECTION?

        12  BY MR. BOIES:

        13  Q.   FIRST PARAGRAPH.

        14  A.   YES, OKAY.

        15  Q.   SECOND SENTENCE, WHERE IT SAYS, "IN THE PAST,

        16  MICROSOFT'S OEM BUSINESS TERMS ARE INDICATIVE OF WHAT ONE

        17  WOULD EXPECT FROM A MONOPOLY."

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        19  A.   YES, I DO.

        20  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

        21  A.   NO.  AS I SAID, I HAVE NOT SEEN THIS DOCUMENT.  I

        22  DON'T AGREE WITH THE TERM WITH LITERALLY 20,000

        23  DEVELOPMENT PEOPLE WHO COULD HAVE CREATED THIS DOCUMENT,

        24  ANY ONE.  THEY COULD USE ANY TERMS.

        25  Q.   WELL, SIR, THIS WAS--THIS WAS CREATED FOR THE PURPOSE
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         1  OF BEING AN INITIAL INTERNAL TERM SHEET FOR A NEGOTIATION

         2  WITH MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

         3  A.   I HAVE NOT SEEN THE DOCUMENT.  IT IS LABELED "INITIAL

         4  INTERNAL TERM SHEET," BUT IT HAS NOT BEEN BLESSED AT THE

         5  EXECUTIVE LEVEL, AND I DON'T BELIEVE IT HAS EVER HAD

         6  EXECUTIVE-LEVEL VISIBILITY, MR. BOIES.

         7  Q.   BUT I--

         8  A.   I CERTAINLY--AS THE EXECUTIVE PARTNER OF MICROSOFT, I

         9  HAVE NEVER SEEN OF OR HEARD THIS DOCUMENT.

        10  Q.   WELL, ARE YOU FAMILIAR AT ALL WITH THE NEGOTIATIONS

        11  THAT ARE DESCRIBED IN THIS DOCUMENT?

        12  A.   NO, I'M NOT.  THERE ARE LITERALLY TENS IF NOT AT ANY

        13  ONE TIME TWENTIES OR EVEN A HUNDRED TRANSACTIONS THAT GO

        14  BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND COMPAQ ON ALMOST A DAILY BASIS.

        15  EACH DEVELOPMENT GROUP IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ITS OWN PRIMARY

        16  WORKING INTERACTIONS.  IF WE GET TO A CONTRACT THAT'S

        17  EVOLVING THE SUBSTANCE, THEN IT GETS ELEVATED UP TO THE

        18  MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE LEVEL.

        19  Q.   MR. ROSE, WOULD IT SURPRISE YOU THAT THIS NEGOTIATION

        20  HAS INCLUDED PEOPLE AT THE EXECUTIVE LEVEL WITHIN COMPAQ?

        21  WOULD THAT SURPRISE YOU?

        22  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  AS I SAID, I'M NOT SURE WHO HAS BEEN

        23  INVOLVED IN THIS.  I HAVEN'T SEEN IT.  I'M NOT AWARE OF

        24  IT.

        25  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE MR. GATES HAS BEEN INVOLVED IN THIS
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         1  NEGOTIATION?

         2  A.   NO, I'M NOT.  I'M NOT AWARE OF WHO WAS INVOLVED IN

         3  THIS TOPIC AT COMPAQ OR MICROSOFT.

         4  Q.   YOU'RE NOT SUGGESTING THAT THIS IS AN UNIMPORTANT

         5  NEGOTIATION TO COMPAQ, ARE YOU, SIR?

         6  A.   NO, I'M NOT SAYING THAT.  I'M JUST SAYING THAT

         7  DOCUMENTS IN NEGOTIATIONS AND BUSINESS CONTRACTS TAKE ON

         8  AN EVOLUTION, AS I'VE SEEN THEM OVER THE YEARS, AND I'M

         9  NOT SURE TO WHICH LEVEL THIS HAS GOT.  I DON'T KNOW IF

        10  THIS WAS DEVELOPED BY ONE OR TWO PEOPLE DOWN AT THE TEAM

        11  LEVEL WITHIN THE CONSUMER GROUP.  I'M NOT EVEN SURE THIS

        12  IS IN THE CONSUMER GROUP.

        13  Q.   YOU DON'T KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT THIS?

        14  A.   I KNOW NOTHING ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT OR THE TOPIC--

        15  Q.   NOW--

        16  A.   --THAT IT ADDRESSES HERE.

        17  Q.   NOW, THIS WAS A DOCUMENT PRODUCED TO US BY COMPAQ IN

        18  CONNECTION WITH YOUR TESTIMONY.

        19           ARE YOU TESTIFYING HERE AS A WITNESS REPRESENTING

        20  COMPAQ, OR ARE YOU TESTIFYING HERE JUST AS AN INDIVIDUAL?

        21  A.   I'M TESTIFYING HERE AS A WITNESS REPRESENTING COMPAQ,

        22  AND I HAVE NOT SEEN THIS DOCUMENT, OR HEARD OF IT.

        23  Q.   AND IN CONNECTION WITH PREPARING TO TESTIFY AS A

        24  WITNESS REPRESENTING COMPAQ, DID YOU TRY TO FAMILIARIZE

        25  YOURSELF WITH THE SUBJECT OF WHAT COMPAQ WAS PRODUCING TO
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         1  US IN CONNECTION WITH YOUR TESTIMONY?

         2  A.   MY LEGAL TEAM AND I WENT THROUGH AS MUCH MATERIAL AS

         3  WE POSSIBLY COULD IN PREPARATION FOR THIS, BUT I HAVE NOT

         4  SEEN THIS DOCUMENT.

         5           THE COURT:  COUNSEL APPROACH THE BENCH, AND

         6  MR. COSTON, TOO, PLEASE.

         7           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)

         8      (PAGES 47 THROUGH 50 UNDER SEAL)

         9

        10

        11

        12

        13

        14

        15

        16

        17

        18

        19

        20

        21

        22

        23

        24

        25
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         1           THE COURT:  BACK ON THE PUBLIC RECORD.

         2                CONTINUED RECROSS-EXAMINATION

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   MR. ROSE, LET ME TURN TO AN AGREEMENT THAT WAS

         5  ENTERED INTO BETWEEN COMPAQ AND AOL IN AUGUST OF 1995; IS

         6  THAT RIGHT?  IS IT 1995 OR 1996?

         7  A.   THE CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT?

         8  Q.   WITH AOL, BETWEEN COMPAQ AND AOL.

         9  A.   AUGUST 23RD, 1995.

        10  Q.   AND THAT CONTRACT IS ATTACHED AS ONE OF THE EXHIBITS

        11  TO YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY; CORRECT?

        12  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        13  Q.   AND YOU WERE AWARE OF THAT CONTRACT WHEN IT WAS

        14  ENTERED INTO, WERE YOU NOT, SIR?

        15  A.   I WAS AWARE OF THE EVOLUTION OF THAT CONTRACT

        16  BEGINNING WITH A LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING GOING BACK TO

        17  APRIL.  I DID NOT SEE THE DETAILED CONTRACT WHEN IT WAS

        18  SIGNED.

        19  Q.   BUT YOU WERE AWARE OF THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, WERE

        20  YOU NOT, SIR?

        21  A.   I WAS AWARE OF THE CONCEPT OF THE CONTRACT, AND THE

        22  BASIC INTENT OF THE CONTRACT.

        23  Q.   AND WHAT WAS THE CONCEPT OF THE CONTRACT AS YOU

        24  DESCRIBE IT?

        25  A.   THE CONCEPT OF THE CONTRACT WAS ACTUALLY A NEW
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         1  CONCEPT THAT COMPAQ WAS EVOLVING, WHICH WAS TO GO BEYOND

         2  JUST THE TRADITIONAL PC--CONSUMER PC BUSINESS THAT WE'RE

         3  IN, AND THAT WAS PUSHING INTO THE INTERNET SPACE, AND

         4  ALLOW OUR SYSTEMS TO BE MORE USEFUL ON THE INTERNET.

         5           SO, WHAT WE WERE DOING WAS CREATING A CONCEPT OF

         6  WHAT WE CALLED RESIDUAL REVENUE STREAMS, AND WE DID THAT

         7  IN PARTNERSHIP WITH AOL, AND THAT WAS THE PURPOSE OF THIS

         8  CONTRACT.  SO, WE WOULD RECEIVE THE RESIDUAL REVENUE

         9  STREAMS FOR FEATURING AOL AND GETTING OUR PRESARIO USERS

        10  TO SIGN UP FOR THE AOL SERVICE AND TO UTILIZE THE AOL

        11  SERVICE.

        12  Q.   THE CONTRACT REQUIRED COMPAQ TO GIVE AOL A POSITION

        13  ON THE DESKTOP THAT WAS SUPERIOR TO ANY COMPETING ONLINE

        14  SERVICE; CORRECT?

        15  A.   IT WAS TO FEATURE AOL, YES.

        16  Q.   WELL, IT WAS TO FEATURE AOL ABOVE ALL OTHER ONLINE

        17  SERVICES; CORRECT?

        18  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        19  Q.   AND THAT INCLUDED MSN; CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT IS--THAT IS HOW THE CONTRACT IS WRITTEN.

        21  Q.   RIGHT.  AND, INDEED, THAT'S HOW THE LETTER OF INTENT

        22  WAS WRITTEN, TOO; CORRECT, SIR?

        23  A.   THE LETTER OF INTENT, I BELIEVE, SAID FEATURE.

        24  Q.   FEATURED IN THE MOST FAVORABLE POSITION; CORRECT?

        25  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.
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         1  Q.   AND--

         2  A.   AND WE DO THAT TODAY.

         3  Q.   AND WHEN YOU SAY YOU DO THAT TODAY, IS IT YOUR

         4  CONTENTION THAT THE AOL CONTRACT WAS CONSISTENT WITH ALL

         5  OF COMPAQ'S AGREEMENTS AND UNDERSTANDINGS WITH MICROSOFT?

         6  A.   NO, IT WAS NOT.

         7           IN FACT, IT WAS IN THE CONTRACT, PARTICULARLY THE

         8  ELEMENT OF THE CONTRACT THAT ELIMINATED THE OPK PROCESS BY

         9  ELIMINATING THE MSN ICON AND EXPLORER WAS IN VIOLATION OF

        10  OUR CORPORATE STRATEGY AND OUR AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT.

        11  Q.   NOW, LET ME TRY TO GET THE CHRONOLOGY STRAIGHT.  WE

        12  GOT AN AOL CONTRACT, AND YOU SAY THAT THAT AOL CONTRACT

        13  WAS IN VIOLATION OF A CORPORATE STRATEGY; CORRECT?

        14  A.   THAT AOL CONTRACT, A PARTICULAR ELEMENT OF THAT

        15  CONTRACT, WAS IN VIOLATION OF A CORPORATE STRATEGY AND A

        16  CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT THAT WAS PUT IN PLACE

        17  PRIOR TO THAT CONTRACT.

        18  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, FIRST, WHEN WAS THE MICROSOFT CONTRACTUAL

        19  AGREEMENT PUT INTO PLACE?

        20  A.   THE MICROSOFT--THIS MICROSOFT AGREEMENT TO FOLLOW THE

        21  WINDOWS 95 OPK PROCESS, AS DEFINED, WAS PUT IN PLACE

        22  AUGUST 8TH OF 1995.

        23  Q.   LET ME BE SURE I HAVE GOT THIS STRAIGHT.

        24           ON AUGUST 8, 1995, COMPAQ SIGNED AN AGREEMENT

        25  WITH MICROSOFT WITH CERTAIN CONTRACTUAL TERMS; IS THAT
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         1  WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

         2  A.   WHAT I'M SAYING IS ON AUGUST 8TH, 1995, COMPAQ AGREED

         3  TO A SET OF TERMS TO FOLLOW THE WINDOWS 95 OPK PROCESS,

         4  WHICH DEFINED THE SETUP PROCEDURE.

         5  Q.   IS THAT A SIGNED AGREEMENT, SIR?

         6  A.   IT WAS THE RESULT OF A CONFERENCE CALL BETWEEN THE

         7  EXECUTIVES OF MICROSOFT AND EXECUTIVES OF COMPAQ,

         8  INCLUDING MYSELF.

         9  Q.   MY ONLY QUESTION IS WHETHER THAT WAS A SIGNED

        10  AGREEMENT.

        11  A.   NO, THAT WAS A VERBAL AGREEMENT.

        12  Q.   OKAY.  SO, YOU'VE GOT A VERBAL AGREEMENT WITH

        13  MICROSOFT ON AUGUST 8TH, 1995?

        14  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        15  Q.   AND YOU THEN SIGN A WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH AOL ON

        16  AUGUST 23, 1995, THAT'S INCONSISTENT?

        17  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        18           AND IF I COULD EXPLAIN, UNFORTUNATELY, ON MY

        19  WATCH, THE COMMUNICATIONS DID NOT GET TO ALL OF THE

        20  PEOPLE, AND PARTICULARLY BECAUSE THERE WAS A DIFFERENT SET

        21  OF PEOPLE THAT SIGNED THE AOL AGREEMENT.  AND

        22  UNFORTUNATELY, WE HAD A COMMUNICATIONS BREAKDOWN.  BUT IT

        23  WAS CLEAR WHAT THE CORPORATE STRATEGY WAS.  IT WAS CLEAR

        24  THAT WE WERE GOING TO FOLLOW THE OPK RULES, AND IT WAS

        25  CLEAR THAT WE SUPPORTED THE PURPOSE OF THE OPK.

                                                           55

         1  Q.   MR. ROSE, YOU'RE SAYING THAT THE PEOPLE WHO WERE

         2  INVOLVED IN THE AUGUST 8TH ORAL AGREEMENT DIDN'T KNOW

         3  ABOUT THE AUGUST 23 WRITTEN AOL AGREEMENT?  IS THAT WHAT

         4  YOU'RE SAYING?

         5  A.   WE KNEW OF THE EVOLVING AGREEMENT WITH AOL THAT WAS

         6  HEADING TO A CONTRACTUAL FORM THAT HAD THE CONCEPT OF

         7  FEATURING, WHAT WE DID NOT KNOW THAT THAT WOULD VIOLATE

         8  THE SETUP PROCEDURE OF THE OPK PROCESS FOR WINDOWS 95.

         9  Q.   I THINK I MAY UNDERSTAND.  LET ME BE CLEARER.

        10           YOU AND THE OTHERS WHO HAD THIS ORAL AGREEMENT

        11  WITH MICROSOFT KNEW THAT THERE WAS A CONTRACT BEING SIGNED

        12  WITH AOL, BUT YOU DIDN'T KNOW WHAT THE TERMS OF THAT

        13  CONTRACT WERE WITH SUFFICIENT PRECISION TO UNDERSTAND THAT

        14  IT WAS INCONSISTENT WITH YOUR ORAL AGREEMENT?

        15  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.  WE EXPECTED THAT THE CONCEPT OF

        16  FEATURING AOL WOULD BE DONE BUT THAT IT WOULD NOT BREAK

        17  THE OPK PROCESS.

        18  Q.   FORGIVE ME, BUT I NEED TO UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

        19  SAYING, BECAUSE--AND I PUT IT TO YOU THAT THE SAME PEOPLE

        20  WERE INVOLVED IN SIGNING THE AOL CONTRACT THAT WERE

        21  INVOLVED IN YOUR AUGUST 8TH DISCUSSIONS; ISN'T THAT SO,

        22  SIR?

        23  A.   SOME OF THEM WERE, BUT NOT ALL OF THEM.  AND THE

        24  PERSON THAT SIGNED THE CONTRACT APPARENTLY DID NOT GET THE

        25  MESSAGE ON THE STRATEGY THAT WE WERE GOING TO FOLLOW THE
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         1  OPK PROCESS.

         2  Q.   BUT--

         3  A.   AND ONE CAN EXPECT, AS WE DO TODAY, WE FEATURE AOL,

         4  BUT WE DO NOT BREAK THE OPK PROCESS TODAY, AND THAT WAS

         5  OUR EXPECTATIONS, THAT WE WOULD FEATURE AOL AND NOT BREAK

         6  THE PROCESS.

         7  Q.   YOU HAD A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL ON AUGUST 8TH

         8  THAT YOU TESTIFIED ABOUT; CORRECT?

         9  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        10  Q.   AND ACCORDING TO YOUR TESTIMONY, IN THAT AUGUST 8TH

        11  TELEPHONE CONVERSATION, IT WAS CLEARLY AGREED THAT COMPAQ

        12  WOULD NOT REMOVE THE MSN ICON AND OTHER ICONS; CORRECT?

        13  A.   THAT IS CORRECT, THAT WE WOULD FOLLOW THE OPK PROCESS

        14  AND NOT REMOVE THE ICONS.

        15  Q.   AND PARTICIPATING IN THAT CONVERSATION THAT YOU SAY

        16  WAS SO CLEAR, WAS A PERSON BY THE NAME OF CELESTE DUNN;

        17  CORRECT?

        18  A.   I'M NOT SURE--I DON'T BELIEVE CELESTE DUNN WAS ON THE

        19  CONFERENCE CALL.

        20  Q.   WELL, SIR, LET'S LOOK AT YOUR DEPOSITION.

        21           AND WE HANDED YOU YOUR OCTOBER 20, 1998,

        22  DEPOSITION?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   AND IF YOU WOULD LOOK AT PAGE 319, LINE TWO ON PAGE

        25  319, (READING):
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         1                "QUESTION:  DID YOU TELL MICROSOFT IN THOSE

         2           WORDS, `WE WILL NOT REMOVE ICONS'?

         3                ANSWER:  YES.

         4                QUESTION:  BUT IT SAYS HERE IT WAS IMPLIED,

         5           BUT YOU SAY IT WAS EXPRESSED?

         6                ANSWER:  NO, IT WAS EXPRESSED.

         7                QUESTION:  SO--

         8                ANSWER:  IT WAS EXPRESSED IN THE

         9           CONVERSATION WE WOULD NOT REMOVE THE ICONS.

        10                QUESTION:  SO YOU'RE NOW SAYING THAT IN

        11           DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN--THAT YOU PARTICIPATED IN

        12           BETWEEN COMPAQ AND MICROSOFT, THERE WAS SPECIFIC

        13           DISCUSSION OF THE MSN AND/OR IE ICONS?

        14                ANSWER:  YES.

        15                QUESTION:  CAN YOU DESCRIBE WHO

        16           PARTICIPATED?

        17                ANSWER:  AS BEST AS I RECALL.

        18                QUESTION:  OKAY.  WHO PARTICIPATED IN THOSE

        19           DISCUSSIONS?

        20                ANSWER:  MYSELF, GARY STIMAC, STEVE

        21           FLANNIGAN, CELESTE DUNN, AND ROD SCHROCK.  I

        22           CAN'T RECALL WHO ALL WAS ON THE MICROSOFT END OF

        23           THE CALL."

        24           DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT AT LEAST

        25  ON OCTOBER 20, 1998, YOU TESTIFIED THAT CELESTE DUNN
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         1  PARTICIPATED?

         2  A.   AT THAT TIME OF MY DEPOSITION, YES, I THOUGHT THAT

         3  CELESTE DUNN HAD PARTICIPATED.  BUT IN GOING BACK AND

         4  CHECKING THE RECORDS, SHE WAS NOT ON THE CONFERENCE CALL.

         5  IT WAS LORI DAY.  SO, IN MY MIND, I HAD THOUGHT IT WAS

         6  CELESTE DUNN, BUT IT WAS LORI DAY WHO WAS ON THE CALL WITH

         7  US.

         8  Q.   HAVE YOU FINISHED?

         9  A.   YES.

        10  Q.   WHAT RECORDS DID YOU GO BACK TO CHECK?

        11  A.   I WENT BACK AND SPOKE TO STEVE FLANNIGAN WHO WAS

        12  RESPONSIBLE FOR SETTING UP THE CALL.

        13  Q.   YOU SAID YOU WENT BACK AND CHECKED RECORDS.  WHAT

        14  RECORDS DID YOU GO BACK TO CHECK?

        15  A.   FLANNIGAN IS MY RECORD.  HE SAID THAT HE WENT BACK

        16  AND PULLED OUT WHO WAS ON THE CALL, AND IT WAS NOT

        17  CELESTE.  IT WAS LORI DAY.

        18  Q.   WHERE DID HE PULL OUT WHO WAS ON THE CALL FROM?

        19  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  HE TOLD ME.

        20  Q.   HE TOLD YOU HE TOLD OUT WHO WAS ON THE CALL?

        21  A.   HE TOLD ME HE WENT BACK AND LOOKED AT THE LIST OF WHO

        22  WAS ON THE CALL, AND IT WAS NOT CELESTE.  IT WAS LORI DAY.

        23  Q.   YOU NEVER SEEN THIS LIST OF WHO WAS ON THE CALL?

        24  A.   NO, I DON'T BELIEVE I HAVE SEEN THE LIST.

        25  Q.   BUT MR. FLANNIGAN TOLD YOU SUCH A LIST EXISTED;
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         1  CORRECT?

         2  A.   HE TOLD ME--HE NAMED THE PEOPLE THAT WERE ON THE

         3  CALL.

         4  Q.   THAT'S NOT MY QUESTION, SIR.

         5           YOU TOLD ME THAT HE LOOKED AT A LIST OF THE

         6  PEOPLE THAT WERE ON THE CALL?

         7  A.   YES, HE SAID HE HAD A LIST OF PEOPLE THAT WERE ON THE

         8  CALL.

         9  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, YOU MAY HAVE PRODUCED THAT LIST, AND I

        10  JUST MAY HAVE MISSED IT, BUT I ASSUMED THAT IF YOU DID NOT

        11  PRODUCE THE LIST YOU WOULD NOT HAVE ANY OBJECTION TO

        12  PRODUCING THAT LIST OVER THE EVENING RECESS?

        13  A.   WE MAY HAVE PRODUCED IT.  WE CERTAINLY WILL HAVE NO

        14  OBJECTION OF GOING BACK AND PRODUCING THAT LIST IF WE

        15  COULD FIND IT.

        16  Q.   YOU MAY HAVE ALREADY PRODUCED THE LIST.

        17  A.   WE MAY HAVE, YES.

        18  Q.   I'M JUST SAYING, IF YOU DIDN'T OUT OF AN ABUNDANCE OF

        19  CAUTION, I DON'T WANT TO FIND OUT AT 6:00 TONIGHT WE DON'T

        20  HAVE IT.

        21           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, IF I MAY, THE LIST IS

        22  ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  IT'S DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2264, WHICH

        23  I MOVED IN THIS MORNING.  AND THERE IS A COVER LETTER

        24  ATTACHED TO THAT DOCUMENT FROM MR. HARDWICK TO

        25  MR. FLANNIGAN WHICH DESCRIBES THE PARTICIPANTS ON THE
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         1  AUGUST 8TH CONFERENCE CALL AND DESCRIBES THEM AS GARY

         2  STIMAC, HUGH BARNES, JOHN ROSE, STEVE FLANNIGAN, LORIE

         3  STRONG AND STEVE GOLDBERG OF COMPAQ, AND JOACHIM KEMPIN

         4  AND DON HARDWICK OF MICROSOFT.

         5           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, 2264 IS AN AMENDMENT.

         6  THIS IS LETTER IS SOMETHING DATED AUGUST 15, 1995.  IT IS

         7  NOT A LIST.  IT IS A LETTER FOR THE RECORD.  COUNSEL CAN

         8  TELL MR. ROSE WHATEVER HE WANTS MR. ROSE TO SAY, BUT THIS

         9  IS NOT A LIST.  IT MAY BE WHAT MR. FLANNIGAN LOOKED AT.

        10           THE COURT:  IS IT SIMPLY A CC AS TO WHO GETS

        11  COPIES OF THE AMENDMENT?

        12           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, THE LETTER IS

        13  REFERRED TO IN THE AMENDMENT, AND IT'S INCORPORATED BY

        14  REFERENCE.

        15           MR. BOIES:  THIS IS A LETTER DATED AUGUST 15,

        16  1995, YOUR HONOR.  AND IF THIS IS THE ONLY THING THAT

        17  EXISTS, THE WITNESS CAN TELL US THAT.

        18           THE COURT:  APPARENTLY ONLY MR. FLANNIGAN CAN SAY

        19  WHAT LIST HE REFERRED TO.

        20           MR. BOIES:  RIGHT, AND THAT'S ALL I'M ASKING, AND

        21  I'M REALLY JUST ASKING THAT THAT COME FROM THE WITNESS AND

        22  NOT FROM COUNSEL FOR MICROSOFT.

        23           MR. PEPPERMAN:  HE WAS ASKED WHETHER THE DOCUMENT

        24  WAS PRODUCED, AND I WAS TRYING TO HELP OUT MR. BOIES AND

        25  THE WITNESS OUT.
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         1           THE COURT:  I'M SURE YOU WERE.

         2           WOULD YOU ASCERTAIN, MR. PEPPERMAN, IF THAT IS

         3  THE, QUOTE, LIST, CLOSED QUOTE, TO WHICH MR. FLANNIGAN

         4  AVERTED?

         5           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YES, I WILL, AT THE NEXT BREAK.

         6           MR. COSTON:  BILL COSTON.  IF IT WILL SPEED

         7  MATTERS ALONG, I CAN REPRESENT AS COMPAQ'S COUNSEL WE

         8  PRODUCED NO SUCH LIST OTHER THAN THIS LETTER TO

         9  MR. FLANNIGAN THAT LISTS THE PEOPLE REPORTEDLY

        10  PARTICIPATING IN THIS TELEPHONE CONFERENCE.

        11           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  YOU HAVE A

        12  REPRESENTATION, MR. BOIES.

        13           MR. BOIES:  I STILL WOULD LIKE--THAT WAS A

        14  REPRESENTATION OF WHAT WAS PRODUCED OR NOT PRODUCED.  I

        15  WOULD ALSO LIKE MR. FLANNIGAN TO IDENTIFY WHETHER HE HAS A

        16  LIST OTHER THAN THIS LETTER.

        17           MR. COSTON:  WE WILL PRODUCE THE LETTER.

        18           THE COURT:  THANK YOU.

        19  BY MR. BOIES:

        20  Q.   NOW, SINCE COUNSEL FOR MICROSOFT HAS RAISED THE

        21  QUESTION, MR. ROSE, YOU HAD THIS LETTER AVAILABLE TO YOU

        22  AT YOUR DEPOSITION.  AND, INDEED, YOU WERE ASKED ABOUT

        23  THIS LETTER AT YOUR DEPOSITION; CORRECT, SIR?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   SO, YOU WERE AWARE OF THIS LETTER AND THE CONTENTS OF
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         1  THE LETTER.  AND, INDEED, YOU WERE EXAMINED ABOUT THE

         2  CONTENTS OF THE LETTER AT YOUR DEPOSITION; CORRECT?

         3  A.   YES.

         4  Q.   AND NEVERTHELESS, YOU GAVE THE TESTIMONY THAT WE'VE

         5  SEEN AT PAGE 319 ABOUT WHO YOU RECALL BEING PARTICIPANTS

         6  IN THIS TELEPHONE CONVERSATION; CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         8  Q.   NOW, CELESTE DUNN WAS THE PERSON WHO SIGNED THE

         9  AGREEMENT WITH AOL; CORRECT?

        10  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        11  Q.   NOW, ONE OF THE PEOPLE THAT YOU IDENTIFIED IN YOUR

        12  LIST AND THAT I BELIEVE WAS ON THE LETTER THAT

        13  MR. PEPPERMAN REFERRED TO WAS MR. SCHROCK.

        14           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   WOULD YOU CHECK THAT LETTER JUST TO MAKE SURE THAT

        17  THAT LETTER ALSO AGREES THAT MR. SCHROCK WAS A PARTICIPANT

        18  IN THIS TELEPHONE CONVERSATION?

        19  A.   THE REFERENCE NUMBER FOR THE LETTER?

        20           THE COURT:  DEFENSE EXHIBIT 2264.

        21           THE WITNESS:  GARY STIMAC, HUGH BARNES, JOHN

        22  ROSE, STEVE FLANNIGAN, LORIE STRONG, AND STEVE GOLDBERG

        23  FROM COMPAQ.

        24  BY MR. BOIES:

        25  Q.   NOT MR. SCHROCK?
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         1  A.   NOT MR. SCHROCK OR MS. DUNN.

         2  Q.   WHAT WAS MR. SCHROCK'S POSITION IN 1995?

         3  A.   IN 1995, HE WAS VICE PRESIDENT OF THE HARDWARE

         4  PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FOR THE PRESARIO PRODUCTS.

         5  Q.   WAS THERE A TIME WHEN HE WAS THE HEAD OF THE CONSUMER

         6  PRODUCTS GROUP?

         7  A.   HE BECAME THE HEAD OF THE CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP IN

         8  JANUARY 1998 WHEN MR. HEIL MOVED UP TO HEAD UP WORLDWIDE

         9  SALES.

        10  Q.   WAS MR. SCHROCK AVAILABLE--WAS MR. SCHROCK AWARE OF

        11  THE FACT THAT THE AOL AGREEMENT WAS INCONSISTENT WITH THE

        12  ALLEGED ORAL AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT AT THE TIME THAT THE

        13  MICROSOFT-AOL--OR, I'M SORRY, AT THE TIME THAT THE

        14  COMPAQ-AOL AGREEMENT WAS ENTERED INTO?

        15  A.   COULD YOU REPEAT YOUR QUESTION?

        16  Q.   SURE.  IT WAS MIXED UP.

        17  A.   YES.

        18  Q.   WAS MR. SCHROCK AWARE IN AUGUST OF 1995 OF THE TERMS

        19  OF THE AOL-COMPAQ AGREEMENT?

        20  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  I'M NOT SURE IF MR. SCHROCK AT THAT

        21  TIME WAS AWARE OF ALL OF THE DETAIL TERMS OF THE AOL

        22  CONTRACT AT THAT TIME.

        23  Q.   WELL, DID YOU--

        24  A.   IT CERTAINLY WAS IN THE PROCESS.

        25  Q.   DID YOU EVER--HAVE YOU FINISHED?
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         1  A.   YES, SORRY.

         2  Q.   DID YOU EVER TRY TO FIND THAT OUT?

         3  A.   I DID NOT SPECIFICALLY SPEAK TO MR. SCHROCK ABOUT

         4  THAT.  I SPOKE WITH MR. FLANNIGAN BECAUSE MR. FLANNIGAN,

         5  AS HE ALWAYS DOES, FOLLOWING ANY OF THESE MEETINGS, GETS

         6  THE COMMUNICATION OUT TO ALL OF THE PEOPLE ON WHAT WE HAVE

         7  AGREED TO, HOW WE WERE PROCEEDING, OR WHAT ISSUES EXIST.

         8  Q.   WHEN DID YOU DISCOVER THAT THERE WAS THIS AOL-COMPAQ

         9  AGREEMENT THAT WAS INCONSISTENT WITH THE ORAL AGREEMENT

        10  THAT YOU SAY YOU REACHED WITH MICROSOFT AUGUST 8TH, 1995?

        11  A.   I DISCOVERED THAT WE HAD AN ISSUE IN MAY OF 1996 WHEN

        12  MICROSOFT PUT US ON NOTICE FOR BEING IN VIOLATION OF OUR

        13  WINDOWS 95 AGREEMENT.  THAT'S THE FIRST TIME THAT I KNEW

        14  WE HAD AN ISSUE.

        15  Q.   SO, YOU FIRST KNEW YOU HAD AN ISSUE AFTER MICROSOFT

        16  HAD GIVEN YOU A CANCELLATION NOTICE?  IS THAT YOUR

        17  TESTIMONY?

        18  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        19  Q.   AND WOULD I BE CORRECT TO SUPPOSE THAT WHEN MICROSOFT

        20  GAVE COMPAQ A CANCELLATION NOTICE, THAT WAS A MATTER OF

        21  GREAT CONCERN TO COMPAQ?

        22  A.   ABSOLUTELY.

        23  Q.   AND WOULD I BE CORRECT IN SUPPOSING THAT PEOPLE AT

        24  COMPAQ TRIED TO FIND OUT HOW IT HAPPENED THAT THEY HAD

        25  LOST THIS CRITICAL LICENSE, OR WERE BEING THREATENED WITH
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         1  LOSING THIS CRITICAL LICENSE?

         2  A.   YES, WE DID.

         3  Q.   AND DID YOU TRY TO FIND OUT HOW IT CAME TO BE THAT

         4  PEOPLE HAD ENTERED INTO THIS WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH AOL

         5  THE SAME MONTH THAT YOU SAY AN INCONSISTENT ORAL AGREEMENT

         6  WAS REACHED WITH MICROSOFT?

         7  A.   YES, WE DID.  AND WE FOUND THE SOURCE OF THE PROBLEM

         8  TO BE A COMMUNICATIONS BREAKDOWN.

         9  Q.   WELL, LET ME SHOW YOU CELESTE DUNN'S DEPOSITION.

        10           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        11  Q.   NOW, YOU MENTIONED MR. FLANNIGAN.  YOU MENTIONED

        12  MR. FLANNIGAN PARTICIPATED IN YOUR AUGUST 8TH TELEPHONE

        13  CALL AT WHICH THIS ORAL AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT WAS, YOU

        14  SAY, REACHED.

        15           AND YOU SAID MR. FLANNIGAN WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR

        16  SENDING AROUND NOTES OF WHAT HAPPENED; CORRECT?

        17  A.   HE IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMMUNICATION TO THE

        18  RELEVANT PARTIES FOLLOWING ANY KIND OF AGREEMENT.  HE'S

        19  RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ISSUE THAT POPS UP TO HELP RESOLVE IT,

        20  PARTICULARLY IN THE MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP.

        21  Q.   NOW--AND JUST TO BE CLEAR, MR. FLANNIGAN, ACCORDING

        22  TO BOTH YOUR RECOLLECTION AND THIS AUGUST 15TH LETTER, WAS

        23  A PARTICIPANT IN THE TELEPHONE CALL; CORRECT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   THE TELEPHONE CALL IN AUGUST 8TH WHERE THIS ORAL
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         1  AGREEMENT YOU SAY WAS REACHED WITH MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

         2  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         3  Q.   NOW, LET ME SHOW YOU PAGE 52 OF CELESTE DUNN'S

         4  DEPOSITION.

         5           AND WHAT WAS HER POSITION IN AUGUST OF 1995?

         6  A.   AT THAT TIME, MS. DUNN WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE

         7  SOFTWARE ON THE PRESARIO.

         8  Q.   THE SOFTWARE ON THE PRESARIO?

         9  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        10  Q.   NOW--

        11  A.   WHAT PAGE ARE YOU ON, MR. BOIES?

        12  Q.   PAGE 52, AND LINES 13 TO 16.

        13           AND IT'S CLEAR FROM THE CONTEXT THAT THIS IS THE

        14  AUGUST 23, 1995, AOL-COMPAQ AGREEMENT; CORRECT, SIR?

        15  A.   COULD YOU REPEAT YOUR QUESTION?

        16  Q.   YES.

        17           ON PAGES 50, 51, AND 52--

        18  A.   YES.

        19  Q.   --MS. DUNN IS BEING EXAMINED ABOUT THE AUGUST 23,

        20  1995, COMPAQ-AOL AGREEMENT; CORRECT?

        21  A.   I BELIEVE THAT TO BE THE CASE.

        22  Q.   AND AT LINES--

        23  A.   I HAVE NOT SEEN THIS BEFORE, SO I WILL ASSUME THAT.

        24  Q.   AND AT LINES 13 TO 16, MS. DUNN IS ASKED--

        25  A.   WHAT PAGE, MR. BOIES?
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         1  Q.   PAGE 52.

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   ON PAGE 52, LINES 13 TO 16, MS. DUNN IS ASKED, "DID

         4  MR. FLANNIGAN, TO YOUR KNOWLEDGE, KNOW ABOUT THIS

         5  AGREEMENT BEFORE IT WAS ENTERED INTO?"

         6           AND SHE ANSWERS "YES."

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   SURE.

         9  Q.   AND THEN ON PAGE 53, LINES 4 THROUGH 12, MS. DUNN IS

        10  ASKED, (READING):

        11                "QUESTION:  SO, YOU ACTUALLY COMMUNICATED TO

        12           HIM THAT THIS AGREEMENT WAS ABOUT TO BE ENTERED

        13           INTO?

        14                ANSWER:  RIGHT.

        15                QUESTION:  WHEN YOU COMMUNICATED TO

        16           MR. FLANNIGAN THAT THIS AGREEMENT WAS ABOUT TO BE

        17           ENTERED INTO, DID HE INDICATE TO YOU THAT IT

        18           WOULD BE AGAINST COMPANY POLICY?

        19                ANSWER:  NO."

        20           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER HAD ANY DISCUSSIONS WITH MR. FLANNIGAN

        23  AS TO WHETHER HE KNEW PRIOR TO THE TIME THE AOL AGREEMENT

        24  OF AUGUST 23, 1995, WAS ENTERED INTO, WHAT THE TERMS OF

        25  THAT AGREEMENT WERE?
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         1  A.   I HAVE HAD THE DISCUSSION.  HE DID NOT--AS MYSELF, HE

         2  UNDERSTOOD THAT WE WERE GOING TO FEATURE, AND AT THE SAME

         3  TIME AS FEATURING, NOT BREAK THE OPK RULES OF MICROSOFT.

         4  Q.   AND--

         5  A.   AS WE DO TODAY.

         6  Q.   AND HIS--I TAKE IT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS HIS

         7  STATEMENT TO YOU WAS HE HAD NEVER ACTUALLY SEEN THE

         8  AGREEMENT?

         9  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        10  Q.   WHEN MICROSOFT THREATENED TO CANCEL THE LICENSE, DID

        11  COMPAQ AGREE TO PUT THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON THAT IT HAD

        12  REMOVED BACK ONTO THE DESKTOP?

        13  A.   WE AGREED TO FOLLOW THE OPK RULES THAT WE HAD AGREED

        14  TO BACK IN AUGUST OF '95, SO WE AGREED TO COMPLY IN THAT

        15  WE WERE NOT COMPLIANT WITH THE PROCESS.

        16  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY YOU AGREED TO COMPLY, WHAT I'M TRYING TO

        17  DO IS FOCUS ON THE INTERNET ICON, THE INTERNET EXPLORER

        18  ICON.

        19           ONE OF THE THINGS THAT COMPAQ HAD DONE WAS TO

        20  REMOVE THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON FROM THE DESKTOP AND

        21  REPLACE IT WITH A NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR ICON; CORRECT?

        22  A.   NO.

        23  Q.   NO?

        24  A.   THE ISSUE WAS WITH AOL AND THE SETUP PROCESS, AND WE

        25  HAD REMOVED MSNET ICON, AND WE HAD REMOVED INTERNET
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         1  EXPLORER, AND WE DID NOT FOLLOW THE OPK SETUP PROCESS.

         2  Q.   PLEASE LISTEN TO MY QUESTION.  AND IF I'M WRONG,

         3  THAT'S FINE, BUT I JUST WANT YOU TO FOCUS ON MY QUESTION.

         4           DID COMPAQ REMOVE--WHATEVER ELSE IT DID--DID IT

         5  ALSO REMOVE THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON AND REPLACE IT WITH

         6  A NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR ICON?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   OKAY.

         9  A.   WE REPLACED IT WITH AOL AND FEATURED AOL, WHICH HAD

        10  THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR IN IT.

        11  Q.   RIGHT.

        12           AND MICROSOFT COMPLAINED TO COMPAQ ABOUT COMPAQ

        13  FEATURING NETSCAPE; CORRECT?

        14  A.   WHEN?

        15  Q.   WELL, LET ME ASK YOU, SIR.

        16  A.   DID THE--

        17  Q.   WHEN, IF AT ALL, TO YOUR KNOWLEDGE--AND IF IT

        18  OCCURRED MORE THAN ONCE, PLEASE TELL ME--DID MICROSOFT

        19  COMPLAIN TO COMPAQ ABOUT COMPAQ FEATURING OR PROMOTING

        20  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR?

        21  A.   THE PARTICULAR ISSUE OF MAY OF GOING ON NOTICE WAS

        22  VIOLATION OF THE OPK PROCESS.

        23  Q.   MAY OF 1996?

        24  A.   MAY OF 1996.

        25           THERE MAY HAVE BEEN SOME OTHER NETSCAPE
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         1  ACTIVITIES.  AND, IN FACT, I THINK THEY WERE IN THE SERVER

         2  AREA, BUT THEY DID NOT HAVE SPECIFICALLY TO DO WITH

         3  NAVIGATOR.

         4  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 298.

         5           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         6  Q.   THIS DOCUMENT IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         7           NOW, THIS IS AN E-MAIL DATED MAY 8, 1996, FROM

         8  LORI DAY TO MIKE HEIL AND OTHERS; CORRECT?

         9  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        10  Q.   AND WHAT WAS MR. HEIL'S POSITION AT THAT TIME?

        11  A.   AT THAT TIME, MR. HEIL WAS HEAD OF THE CONSUMER

        12  DIVISION.

        13  Q.   AND WHAT WAS LORI DAY'S POSITION?

        14  A.   LORI DAY WAS THE PROGRAM MANAGER RESPONSIBLE FOR THE

        15  SERVER RELATIONSHIP WITH NETSCAPE, PART OF OUR NETSCAPE

        16  PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM, SO SHE WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR

        17  PARTNERSHIP.

        18  Q.   NOW, IN THE SECOND PARAGRAPH IT SAYS, "SINCE THE

        19  SYSTEM DIVISION ANNOUNCED OUR PARTNERSHIP WITH NETSCAPE IN

        20  FEBRUARY, WE HAVE BEEN IN DISCUSSIONS WITH MICROSOFT ABOUT

        21  OUR INTERNET/INTRANET STRATEGY."

        22           DO YOU KNOW WHAT PARTNERSHIP WITH NETSCAPE IS

        23  BEING REFERRED TO THERE?

        24  A.   SURE.

        25           WOULD YOU LIKE ME TO ELABORATE?
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         1  Q.   IS THIS THE PARTNERSHIP WITH RESPECT TO COMPAQ'S

         2  INTERNAL USE OF NETSCAPE?

         3  A.   NO.

         4           WHAT THAT IS--WOULD YOU LIKE ME TO ELABORATE?

         5  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO ELABORATE AFTER THIS NEXT SENTENCE.

         6  A.   OKAY.

         7  Q.   IT SAYS, "MICROSOFT WAS UPSET WITH OUR ANNOUNCEMENT

         8  AND OUR INTERNAL USE OF NETSCAPE, AND INITIATED A NUMBER

         9  OF ACTIVITIES WITH DEC AND HP, REDUCING THEIR EMPHASIS ON

        10  THE COMPAQ PARTNERSHIP."

        11           NOW, DO I UNDERSTAND THAT YOU'RE SAYING THAT YOUR

        12  INTERNAL USE OF NETSCAPE WAS SEPARATE FROM THE PARTNERSHIP

        13  WITH NETSCAPE THAT'S REFERRED TO THERE?

        14  A.   YES.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  THEN, IN THAT CASE, I WOULD LIKE YOU TO TELL

        16  ME ABOUT BOTH OF THOSE.

        17  A.   SURE.  LET ME GIVE YOU SOME--

        18  Q.   AS BRIEFLY AS YOU THINK YOU FAIRLY CAN.

        19  A.   OKAY.  LET ME GIVE THE COURT A LITTLE BIT OF

        20  BACKGROUND.  I TALKED ABOUT THE CONCEPT OF THE COMPUTER

        21  BEING THE CENTER OF INFORMATION AND THE NETWORK.  WE WERE

        22  VERY MUCH, AS WE ARE TODAY, CENTRIC TO DRIVING THE

        23  INTERNET AS THE PARADIGM FOR COMMUNICATIONS.  WE HAD

        24  PUSHED VERY HARD ON ALL OF OUR PARTNERS, IN PARTICULAR

        25  MICROSOFT, TO GET THE PRODUCTS TO BE MORE

                                                           72

         1  INTERNET-CENTRIC.

         2           IN FEBRUARY OF '90--I BELIEVE IT WAS IN FEBRUARY

         3  OF '96, WE ENTERED INTO A SERVER AGREEMENT FOR INTER AND

         4  INTRANET PARTNERSHIP AND PROMOTION OF SERVER SOFTWARE WITH

         5  NETSCAPE, AND THAT PARTNERSHIP IS STILL IN EFFECT TODAY.

         6           AND WHAT THAT DID WAS WE CREATED A MOMENTUM IN

         7  THE INDUSTRY.  WE PUSHED NETSCAPE, AS WE DO TODAY, AS PART

         8  OF OUR INTERNET/INTRANET SOLUTIONS FOR CUSTOMERS,

         9  PARTICULARLY BUSINESS CUSTOMERS.  AND AT THAT TIME, WE

        10  USED IT AS A STIMULUS TO FURTHER GET MICROSOFT TO MOVE AND

        11  TO ACCELERATE THEIR INTERNET SUPPORT OF THE SERVER

        12  SOFTWARE IN VARIOUS DIMENSIONS OF THE SERVICE SOFTWARE AS

        13  WELL AS THE CLIENT SOFTWARE.

        14  Q.   ARE YOU FINISHED?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   I MAY HAVE MISSED IT, BUT I DID NOT HEAR YOU DESCRIBE

        17  WHAT THE INTERNAL USE OF NETSCAPE AT COMPAQ WAS THAT UPSET

        18  MICROSOFT AND CAUSED MICROSOFT TO INITIATE A NUMBER OF

        19  ACTIVITIES WITH DEC AND HP REDUCING MICROSOFT'S EMPHASIS

        20  ON THE COMPAQ PARTNERSHIP.

        21  A.   THAT REFERENCE IS NOT TIED TO THE INTERNET--TO THE

        22  INTERNAL USE.  IT'S TIED TO THE INTERNET/INTRANET BECAUSE

        23  WE MADE A BIG PUBLIC POSITION, WE ANNOUNCED THE JOINT

        24  PARTNERSHIP, WE DID A LOT OF PRESS ACTIVITIES, AND WE

        25  LAUNCHED JOINT PRODUCTS THAT FEATURED OUR PROLIANT SERVERS
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         1  WITH NETSCAPE'S INTRANET AND INTRANET SOLUTIONS.  THAT WAS

         2  THE CONCERN AS I UNDERSTOOD THAT MICROSOFT DID, AND IT

         3  WORKED.  IT WAS A GREAT STIMULUS FOR GETTING OUR PARTNER,

         4  MICROSOFT, TO MOVE MORE SERIOUSLY ON THE INTERNET.

         5           INTERNAL USE WE HAD--WE WERE DEVELOPING--WE HAD

         6  OUR OWN INTERNAL MAIL SYSTEM WHICH WAS SOMEWHAT ARCHAIC,

         7  AND WE HAD AN INTERNAL EMPLOYEE INFORMATION SYSTEM THAT WE

         8  COINED INLINE, OF WHICH--WHICH WE WANTED TO MAKE MORE

         9  INTRANET-CENTRIC, AND THERE WE WERE LOOKING AT USING

        10  NETSCAPE'S CLIENT.

        11  Q.   DID YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS E-MAIL AT OR ABOUT THE

        12  TIME IT WAS SENT?

        13  A.   NO.  I'M REFERRED TO IN THE BODY OF THE LETTER, BUT I

        14  WAS NOT ON THE COPY LIST.

        15  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER SEEN THIS BEFORE I SHOWED IT TO YOU

        16  TODAY?

        17  A.   YES, I HAVE.  I HAVE SEEN IT IN PREPARATION.

        18  Q.   IN PREPARATION FOR THIS TESTIMONY?

        19  A.   I HAVE SEEN IT IN PREPARATION FOR THIS TRIAL.

        20  Q.   FOR THIS TRIAL?

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   PRIOR TO BEING SHOWN THIS IN PREPARATION FOR THIS

        23  TRIAL, HAD YOU SEEN IT BEFORE?

        24  A.   NO, I HADN'T.

        25  Q.   WHO SHOWED IT TO YOU?
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         1  A.   MY COUNSEL.

         2  Q.   WHO DID YOU DISCUSS IT WITH?

         3  A.   MY COUNSEL.

         4  Q.   ANYONE ELSE?

         5  A.   NO.

         6  Q.   DID YOU DISCUSS IT WITH ANY OF THE BUSINESS

         7  INDIVIDUALS THAT ARE LISTED HERE?

         8  A.   NO.

         9           AT THE TIME THAT THIS WAS GOING ON--

        10  Q.   DID YOU DISCUSS THIS E-MAIL, IS WHAT I'M ASKING?

        11  A.   NO, I DID NOT DISCUSS THIS E-MAIL.

        12           AT THE TIME, I WAS VERY COGNIZANT--AND THAT'S WHY

        13  I'M REFERENCED IN HERE--OF THE ISSUES.

        14  Q.   THE SECOND SENTENCE HERE SAYS, "MICROSOFT WAS UPSET

        15  WITH OUR ANNOUNCEMENT AND OUR INTERNAL USE OF NETSCAPE,

        16  AND INITIATED A NUMBER OF ACTIVITIES WITH DEC AND HP,

        17  REDUCING THEIR EMPHASIS ON THE COMPAQ PARTNERSHIP."

        18           FIRST, DEC REFERS TO DIGITAL EQUIPMENT

        19  CORPORATION, AND HP REFERS TO HEWLETT-PACKARD; IS THAT

        20  CORRECT, SIR?

        21  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        22  Q.   AND THEY ARE COMPETITORS OF COMPAQ; CORRECT, SIR?

        23  A.   THEY WERE AT THAT TIME.

        24  Q.   THEY WERE AT THAT TIME.

        25  A.   DIGITAL IS NOW PART OF COMPAQ.  WE ACQUIRED THEM.
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         1  Q.   AT THIS TIME, WHEN DIGITAL AND HP WERE COMPETITORS OF

         2  COMPAQ, WAS MICROSOFT DOING THINGS WITH YOUR COMPETITORS

         3  THAT YOU BELIEVED REDUCED MICROSOFT'S EMPHASIS ON WORKING

         4  WITH COMPAQ?

         5  A.   NO.

         6  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY IDEA WHY LORI DAY WOULD HAVE WRITTEN

         7  THIS SINCE YOU SAY YOU WERE IN DISCUSSIONS WITH HER ABOUT

         8  THIS AT THE TIME IF IT WERE NOT TRUE?

         9  A.   I BELIEVE LAURA--MS. DAY, AT THE TIME, FELT THAT THAT

        10  COULD BE A RISK, BUT THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE OF IMPACT IN

        11  OUR SERVER BUSINESS OR OUR INTRANET/INTERNET BUSINESS BY

        12  MICROSOFT'S WORK WITH EITHER DIGITAL OR HP.

        13  Q.   NOW, MS. DAY DOES NOT SAY THAT THERE IS A RISK OF

        14  THIS HAPPENING.  SHE SAYS THAT MICROSOFT HAS

        15  INITIATED--PAST TENSE--A NUMBER OF ACTIVITIES WITH DEC AND

        16  HP, REDUCING MICROSOFT'S EMPHASIS ON THE MICROSOFT

        17  PARTNERSHIP; CORRECT, SIR?

        18  A.   YES.

        19  Q.   AND I TAKE IT THAT KNOWING MS. DAY, YOU WOULD BELIEVE

        20  THAT IF SHE WROTE THAT, SHE CERTAINLY BELIEVED THAT THAT

        21  WAS TRUE AT THE TIME; CORRECT?

        22  A.   I'M SURE SHE DID.

        23  Q.   AND SHE IS NOT SOMEBODY WHO WOULD MAKE CARELESS

        24  STATEMENTS, IS SHE, SIR?

        25  A.   NO, I DON'T BELIEVE THAT WAS A CARELESS STATEMENT.
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         1  THAT WAS HER PERCEPTION AT THAT TIME.

         2  Q.   NOW, DOWN AT THE BOTTOM THERE IS A LIST OF ITEMS THAT

         3  ARE BEING PROPOSED.

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND ONE OF THEM IS, "THAT COMPAQ TO SHIP NEW VERSIONS

         7  OF INTERNET EXPLORER AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER ON ALL DESKTOP

         8  AND SERVER PLATFORMS WITHIN EIGHT WEEKS FROM RELEASE."

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   YES.

        11  Q.   AND THEN IT SAYS, "COMPAQ TO DISPLAY MSN ICON ON THE

        12  DESKTOP ON ALL WINDOWS 95"--AND THEN I DON'T KNOW WHAT

        13  THAT REFERS TO, THE LETTERS RIGHT AFTER THAT.

        14  A.   I'M NOT SURE WHAT THE P-C-A-E-S--THAT'S AN ACRONYM

        15  THAT I'M NOT FAMILIAR WITH, MR. BOIES.

        16  Q.   SO, THE SECOND ITEM HERE IS THAT COMPAQ IS SUPPOSED

        17  TO DISPLAY THE MSN ICON ON THE DESKTOP.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        19  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        20  Q.   NOW, IN THIS MEMORANDUM OR E-MAIL DATED MARCH 8,

        21  1996, MS. DAY DESCRIBES THIS AS AN ITEM THAT WOULD AFFECT

        22  THE CONSUMER DIVISION, BUT ONE THAT IS NOT YET BEEN

        23  AGREED.

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   NOW, WHERE ARE YOU READING THAT?
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         1  Q.   LET'S GO TO THE MIDDLE OF THE PARAGRAPH WHERE IT

         2  SAYS--

         3  A.   "WE HAVE NOT AGREED"?

         4  Q.   YEAH.  I THINK THAT MAKES IT CLEAR.  WE COULD GO BACK

         5  FURTHER IF YOU NEED TO.

         6  A.   SURE.  IT SAYS, "WE HAVE NOT AGREED AT THAT TIME."

         7  Q.   RIGHT, BUT THESE ARE ITEMS THAT ARE BEING PROPOSED IN

         8  ORDER TO FURTHER THE RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

         9  A.   THESE ARE ITEMS THAT ARE BEING PROPOSED TO GET

        10  MICROSOFT TO ACCELERATE IN A SIMILAR KIND OF FASHION THE

        11  FOCUS ON THE INTRANET THAT WE HAD WITH NETSCAPE, YES.

        12  Q.   AND ONE OF THE ITEMS THAT IS BEING PROPOSED IS THAT

        13  COMPAQ DISPLAY THE MSN ICON ON THE DESKTOP SCREEN ON ALL

        14  WINDOWS 95 PC'S; CORRECT?

        15  A.   WELL, IT SAYS P-C-A-E, WHICH I'M NOT SURE WHAT THAT

        16  IS, AS I SAID EARLIER.  AND IF IT'S DISPLAYING OF THE

        17  ICON, THAT'S SOMETHING WE SHOULD HAVE ALREADY BEEN DOING

        18  IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE OPK.

        19  Q.   EXACTLY MY POINT, MR. ROSE.  HERE IS YET ANOTHER

        20  PERSON WHO, IN MAY OF 1996, DOESN'T SEEM TO UNDERSTAND

        21  THAT YOU REACHED THIS ORAL AGREEMENT THAT YOU SAY YOU

        22  REACHED BACK IN AUGUST OF 1995; CORRECT?

        23  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        24  Q.   NOW, THE COPYEES OF THIS MEMORANDUM INCLUDE

        25  MR. FLANNIGAN; CORRECT?
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         1  A.   YES.

         2  Q.   AND THE ADDRESSEE IS MR. HEIL; CORRECT?

         3  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         4  Q.   NOW, IF YOU GIVE ME JUST ONE MINUTE.

         5           (PAUSE.)

         6  Q.   IS THERE ANY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN LORIE STRONG AND

         7  LORI DAY?

         8  A.   WHAT TYPE OF RELATIONSHIP ARE YOU SUGGESTING?

         9  Q.   A, ARE THEY THE SAME PERSON; B, DO THEY WORK

        10  TOGETHER?

        11  A.   NO, THEY'RE TWO DIFFERENT PEOPLE IN TWO SEPARATE

        12  ORGANIZATIONS AT THE TIME.

        13  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT ORGANIZATION LORI DAY WAS IN?

        14  A.   YES.  AS I STATED EARLIER, MS. DAY WAS RESPONSIBLE IN

        15  THE SERVER DIVISION FOR THE NETSCAPE PARTNERSHIP, SO SHE

        16  WAS THE PARTNER PROGRAM MANAGER FOR COMPAQ WITH THE

        17  NETSCAPE RELATIONSHIP.

        18  Q.   DID SHE WORK IN YOUR ORGANIZATION, SIR?

        19  A.   NO, SHE DID NOT.

        20  Q.   DID MR. FLANNIGAN WORK IN YOUR ORGANIZATION?

        21  A.   AT THAT TIME, NO, MR. FLANNIGAN DID NOT.

        22           JUST TO CLARIFY IT, MS. DAY WORKED FOR

        23  MR. STIMAC, WHO--OF WHICH MR. STIMAC WAS PART OF THE

        24  AGREEMENT REACHED ON AUGUST 8TH, 1995.

        25  Q.   NOW, IF YOU LOOK AT THE TOP OF THE PAGE, SPEAKING OF

                                                           79

         1  MR. STIMAC--

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   --MR. HEIL GETS THIS E-MAIL AND FORWARDS IT ON TO

         4  MR. STIMAC; CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   MR. HEIL FORWARDED IT TO MS. DUNN AND MR. SCHROCK AND

         6  COPIED MR. STIMAC AND OTHERS.

         7  Q.   RIGHT.  SO, MR. STIMAC WOULD HAVE RECEIVED THIS ON

         8  MAY 10, 1996; CORRECT, SIR?

         9  A.   IT WOULD HAVE BEEN IN HIS ELECTRONIC FOLDER ON MAY

        10  10TH, 1996.  I'M NOT SURE WHERE MR. STIMAC WAS.

        11  Q.   RIGHT.  BUT ASSUMING THAT MR. STIMAC CHECKS HIS

        12  E-MAIL MORE OFTEN THAN I DO, HE WOULD HAVE PRESUMABLY

        13  RECEIVED THIS ON OR ABOUT MAY 10, 1996; IS THAT CORRECT?

        14  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        15  Q.   SO, YOU HAVE COPIES OF THIS GOING TO MR. FLANNIGAN

        16  AND GOING TO MR. STIMAC.

        17           AND INSOFAR AS YOU ARE AWARE, DID ANYONE AFTER

        18  RECEIVING THIS SAY, "WE CAN'T UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

        19  TALKING ABOUT, WE ALREADY HAVE AN OBLIGATION TO DISPLAY

        20  THE MSN ICON ON THE DESKTOP"?

        21  A.   I'M NOT SURE, SINCE I WAS NOT COPIED ON IT AT THE

        22  TIME, EXACTLY WHAT CONVERSATION OCCURRED.

        23           I DO, HOWEVER, KNOW MR. STIMAC, WHO WAS

        24  RESPONSIBLE FOR MS. DAY, WAS A SENIOR OFFICER OF THE

        25  COMPANY AND PART OF THE--AND WAS THE EXECUTIVE PARTNER OF
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         1  MICROSOFT AT THE TIME AND PART OF THE FORMAL AGREEMENT

         2  WITH MICROSOFT ON AUGUST 8TH, '95.

         3  Q.   AND BY "FORMAL AGREEMENT," YOU MEAN ORAL AGREEMENT;

         4  CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   I CAN ONLY ASK YOU WHAT YOU KNOW OR WHAT PEOPLE HAVE

         7  TOLD YOU, BUT INSOFAR AS YOU ARE AWARE, NOBODY RAISED THE

         8  CONFLICT BETWEEN THE AOL AGREEMENT, OR WHAT IS SUGGESTED

         9  HERE, AND THE ORAL AUGUST 8TH, 1995, AGREEMENT; CORRECT?

        10  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

        11           THE COURT:  YOU CAN PICK AN APPROPRIATE TIME.

        12           MR. BOIES:  THIS WOULD BE AN APPROPRIATE TIME,

        13  YOUR HONOR.

        14           THE COURT:  WE WILL RECONVENE AT 10:00 TOMORROW.

        15           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:26 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

        16  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., THE FOLLOWING DAY.)

        17

        18

        19

        20

        21

        22

        23

        24

        25
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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        18

        19

        20

        21

        22

        23

        24
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